MEETING OF AUDIT COMMITTEE Community College of Philadelphia Tuesday, March 29, 2022 – 10:00 a.m.

TO: Audit Committee of the Board of Trustees

FROM: Gim S. Lim

DATE: March 24, 2022

SUBJECT: Audit Committee Meeting

A meeting of the Audit Committee will be held on **Tuesday, March 29, 2022 at 10:00 a.m.** in the College's Isadore A. Shrager Board Room, M2-1 or via Zoom.

https://ccp.zoom.us/j/2157518187 Passcode: 4750

AGENDA – PUBLIC SESSION

(1) <u>Approve Minutes of Audit Committee Meeting on September 27, 2021 (Action Item)</u>:

<u>Attachment A</u> contains minutes from the September 27, 2021 meeting. The Committee is asked to review and approve the minutes.

(2) <u>2020-2021 Uniform Guidance Report (Action Item)</u>:

Ms. Angelica Roiz, Engagement Partner from Grant Thornton will present the results of the 2020-21 Uniform Guidance audit (Attachment B). The Uniform Guidance draft report is provided in <u>Attachment C</u>. The Uniform Guidance Report begins on page 73. Pages 1 to 72 contain the Financial Statements that were reviewed and accepted by the Board of Trustees on October 7, 2021.

(3) Internal Audit Update (Information Item):

Mr. Robert Lucas, Internal Auditor, will present a status report on the 2020-2022 Internal Audit Plan (<u>Attachment D</u>). Mr. Lucas will also provide an update on assistance provided to management related to the development of division/department Disaster Recovery Plans.

(4) <u>Internal Audit Committee Update (Information Item)</u>:

Mr. Robert Lucas will provide an update on the activities of the Internal Audit Committee.

(5) <u>Next Meeting</u>:

The next meeting of the Committee will be in June 2022 at which time Grant Thornton will discuss their proposed Audit Plan for the 2021-2022 Fiscal Year.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

During any audit committee meeting; Management, The Independent Auditors or the Internal Auditor may request an Executive Session to meet privately with the Audit Committee.

cc: Dr. Donald Generals, Jr. Mr. Jacob Eapen Ms. Victoria Zellers, Esq. Mr. Robert Lucas Mr. Derrick Sawyer Representing Grant Thornton: Ms. Angelica Roiz Representing Grant Thornton: Mr. Alex Ney

ATTACHMENT A

Minutes from September 27, 2021 Audit Committee Meeting

MEETING OF AUDIT COMMITTEE Community College of Philadelphia Monday, September 27, 2021 – 10:00 a.m.

- Present: Mr. Anthony J. Simonetta, Mr. Jeremiah White (via Zoom), Mr. Steve Herzog (via Zoom), Donald Generals, Ed.D., Mr. Jacob Eapen, Victoria Zellers, Esq. (via Zoom), Mr. Gim Lim, Mr. Robert Lucas (via Zoom), and representing Grant Thornton: Ms. Angelica Roiz and Mr. Alex Ney
- Absent: Ms. Lydia Hernández Vélez & Mr. Derrick Sawyer

AGENDA – PUBLIC SESSION

The Audit Committee meeting was held on-campus for the first time since the last pre-pandemic meeting in September 2019. Zoom continued to be available for those who could not attend on-campus. Mr. Jacob Eapen informed Mr. Anthony Simonetta that Mr. Michael Soileau is the new Chair of the Business Affairs Committee and he will be attending future Audit Committee meetings.

1. <u>Approve Minutes of Audit Committee Meeting on June 15, 2021 (Action Item)</u>:

Action: Mr. Simonetta asked whether anybody has corrections or changes to the minutes. Hearing no changes, Mr. Simonetta asked for a motion to recommend acceptance of the June 15, 2021 Audit Committee meeting minutes (<u>Attachment A</u>). Mr. Steve Herzog made the motion. Mr. Jeremiah White seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

2. 2020-21 Fiscal Year Audit Report (Action Item):

Ms. Angelica Roiz presented the results of the 2020-2021 audit results (<u>Attachment</u> <u>B</u>). She informed the Committee that the short form report of the June 30, 2021 Financial Statements (<u>Attachment C</u>) was due to the City by the end of the month but was informed that the City has provided an automatic extension because of the pandemic. She noted that the College is a component unit of the City.

Ms. Roiz reported that the audit was completed with the full cooperation from management consistent with the timeline shared with the Audit Committee at its June 2021 meeting. Ms. Roiz reported that the audit went smoothly and they have completed their procedures and testing. The report issuance will be sometime this week. They will be back in the fall to perform the Uniform Guidance audit which will be reported to the Audit Committee next March 2022. The Uniform Guidance audit will take a deeper look at the impact of various federal relief programs.

Mr. Alex Ney then reported there were no adjustments or findings to this year's audit. He proceeded to overview the areas of significant audit focus. Ms. Roiz added that within federal awards and state grants, anytime there is a potential of management override of controls, they have to presume fraud risk and therefore consider it as an area of significant audit focus. Other areas of significant audit focus were investments, tuition revenues, appropriations, OPEB and new for this year were New Market Tax Credit and CCP Development, LLC. Ms. Roiz reported that technology support was part of the audit process. Their technology specialists performed a review of the financial aid module, tested administrator access and conducted password testing.

Ms. Roiz concluded her presentation by providing an industry update. She reported that S&P's 2021 outlook for the Higher Education sector remains 'negative' primarily due to declining enrollment. However, public colleges are expected to fare better than private non-profits and for profit schools. Ms. Roiz reported that approximately \$69 billion of COVID relief funding has gone mostly to public colleges. Mr. Eapen added that Moody's Investors Service has kept the College's credit rating the same with a stable outlook. Mr. Simonetta noted that on COVID relief funding (Attachment B – Page 22), the amount Received was greater than the Eligible amount for the For-Profit sector. Ms. Roiz agreed that it was probably transposed and will follow-up on it.

Ms. Roiz thanked Management for all of their hard work and cooperation during the audit.

Action: Mr. Simonetta asked for a motion to recommend acceptance of the June 30, 2021 Financial Statement Audit report. Mr. White made a motion to accept the June 30, 2021 Financial Statement Audit. Mr. Herzog seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

3. Internal Audit Committee/Internal Audit Plan (Information Item):

Mr. Robert Lucas provided an update on the 2020-2022 Internal Audit Plan (<u>Attachment D</u>). He provided a summary report of activities since the last Audit Committee meeting and a spreadsheet of the Internal Audit Plan by email in advance of the meeting. Mr. Lucas stated that, since the last Audit Committee meeting, two audits had been completed with draft audit reports issued to management, two other reports are still being discussed with management, and three audits are in various stages of progress.

Mr. Lucas also reviewed the 2020-2022 Internal Audit Plan in Excel format showing what stages the FY21-22 audits were at based on the codes shown on the plan.

Lastly, Mr. Lucas reviewed with the Committee the Internal Audit Follow Up Matrix on which the audit comments, recommendations, and management's action plans are tracked. The matrix had also been distributed to the Committee members by email in advance of the meeting. He reviewed the status of the audit comments for which management action plans are not yet fully addressed. He reviewed these comments with Committee members based on the color coding used on the spreadsheet to denote the status of management's actions plans. Mr. Lucas noted a number of action plans remain which are in progress (highlighted in yellow), or for which more than a year has passed since the original target date for the agreed upon actions (highlighted in red). Mr. Lucas noted that he expected some of the actions to have more attention now that the returnto-campus activities have been accomplished.

4. March 2022 Meeting Date (Information Item):

The next meeting will be to discuss the results of the College's Uniform Guidance Audit. Typically, this meeting is scheduled for the month of March, since the deadline to submit the results to the Department of Education is March 31st of each year.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

An Executive session of the Audit Committee was held with Grant Thornton and the College staff.

GSL/lh Attachments

cc: Dr. Donald Generals, Jr. Mr. Jacob Eapen Ms. Victoria Zellers, Esq. Mr. Robert Lucas Mr. Derrick Sawyer Representing Grant Thornton: Ms. Angelica Roiz Representing Grant Thornton: Mr. Alex Ney



PRESENTATION TO THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

2021 Annual Uniform Guidance Audit Results Presentation

Community College of Philadelphia

March 29, 2022

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management and those charged with governance of Community College of Philadelphia and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

© 2021 Grant Thornton LLP | All rights reserved | U.S. member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd

Areas of focus for Single Audit

The following provides an overview of the major programs tested this year; it has been determined based on the final schedule of expenditures of federal awards prepared by management.

Major programs	2021	2020	2019
Student Financial Assistance Cluster	Х	Х	X
Education Stabilization Fund (AL# 84.425)	Х	Х	
Career and Technical Education – Basic Grants to States (AL# 84.048)			X



Areas of focus for Single Audit (continued)

The following provides an overview of the areas of significant audit focus based on our risk assessments.

Area of focus	Results
Compliance with Uniform Guidance	Perform compliance and controls procedures in accordance with the Uniform Guidance Requirements, including:
	 Planning, identification of major federal programs and risk assessment.
	 Review the respective federal compliance supplement and, as applicable, the specific grant/award agreements and assess and document the applicable compliance requirements.
	 Document/update internal controls over compliance for each of the respective major federal programs or clusters.
	 Test compliance and internal controls over compliance for each direct and material compliance requirement over each major federal program.
	 There are 12 compliance requirements for each major program. Of these, typically 6- 8 have been direct and material to each major program or cluster.
	 Consistent with prior years, we audited compliance associated with the federal Student Financial Assistance (SFA) Cluster as well as the Education Stabilization Fund (HEERF).
	 Test the reconciliation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards to the respective amounts included within the financial statements.



Areas of focus for Single Audit(continued)

The following provides an overview of the areas of significant audit focus based on our risk assessments.

Results
 Communicate compliance/control findings, if any, to management and TCWG**.
 Address resolution of communicated compliance/control findings and understand management's response to be included in the corrective action plan.
 Assess completeness of disclosures related to the federal schedule of expenditures, including the impact of any new federal funding associated with COVID-19 pandemic relief received during the year (HEERF).
Render respective independent auditor opinions.
 Prepare the appropriate sections of the federal Data Collection Form submitted to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse.

** Open for completion, pending receipt of final support items for purposes of student financial aid testing (Status Change & Enrollment Reporting).



Technology support as part of the audit process



An important component of our audit approach is to understand how IT is used and deployed in supporting business operations and producing financial reports. Our technology specialists place particular emphasis on the risks relating to the use of technology and its associated controls, processes and practices. Our general controls review evaluates the design of controls that mitigate risk in areas such as organization and operations, protection of physical assets, application systems development and maintenance, access controls and computer operations.

In scope system: Banner - general ledger and student financial aid



Commitment to promote ethical and professional excellence

We are committed to promoting ethical and professional excellence. To advance this commitment, we have put in place a phone and internet-based hotline system.

The Ethics Hotline (1.866.739.4134) provides individuals a means to call and report ethical concerns.

The EthicsPoint URL link can be accessed from our external website or through this link: https://secure.ethicspoint.com/domain/en/report_custom.asp?clientid=15191

Disclaimer: EthicsPoint is not intended to act as a substitute for a company's "whistleblower" obligations.





Our best analyses and creative solutions for organizations and institutions

Articles in this year's report:

- Workforce strategies for the new age
- Strategies for hiring and retaining talent
- Learning from life sciences companies
- The case for a customer-centric approach
- Embracing a holistic ESG strategy
- DE&I, ESG and the compliance function
- Leveraging your mission to succeed
- Supporting mission through technology
- Leadership strategies in a virtual world
- The future of the corporate foundation

For higher education institutions:

- A framework for educational equity
- Student preferences help drive change
- Facilities and workforce expenses
- M&A accelerates in higher education



Subscribe to the Board and Executive Institute at grantthornton.com/subscribe to be notified of its release



© 2017 Grant Thornton LLP | All rights reserved | U.S. member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd

Additional resources



Available at gt.com/nfp



GrantThornton





© 2017 Grant Thornton LLP | All rights reserved | U.S. member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd

2022 Webcast Series

Each year, leaders from Grant Thornton LLP's Not-for-Profit and Higher Education Practices provide learning opportunities through our webcast series. These sessions cover a wide variety of trending topics and regulatory updates relevant to not-for-profit and higher education management and trustees. We welcome you to visit grantthornton.com/nfp for more information on upcoming webcasts and to access past webcasts, which are archived for one year.



The state of the not-for-profit and higher education sectors Register to attend



The race for talent: Attracting and retaining your nonprofit workforce Register to attend



DEC 7

Not-for-profit accounting, regulatory and Uniform Guidance update

Evolving role of a not-for-profit's chief diversity officer

All webcasts are from 2:00-3:30 p.m. ET.



Financial Statements and Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants in Accordance with OMB Uniform Guidance

Community College of Philadelphia (A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

June 30, 2021 and 2020

Contents

	Page
Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants	3
Management's Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)	5
Financial statements	
Statements of net position	14
Statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position	16
Statements of cash flows	18
Notes to financial statements	20
Required supplementary information (unaudited)	
Schedules of changes in total OPEB liability and related ratios - last 10 years	54
Schedules of proportionate share of the net pension liability - last 10 years	55
Schedules of employer contributions - last 10 years	56
Other information (unaudited)	
Statistical section	58
Demographic statistics	66
Component unit statement of net position	67
Component unit statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position	68
Component unit capital asset format	69
Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance	70
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards	71
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards	72

Contents

Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on	
Compliance and Other Matters Required by <i>Government</i> Auditing Standards	73
Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants on Compliance For Each Major Federal Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance	75
Schedule of Findings and Quantianed Casta	77
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs	11
Summary of Prior Year Audit Findings	78
Agreed-Upon Procedures Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants	79
Schedule of Federal Awards Passed through the Pennsylvania Department of Human Services	82
Supplemental Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures	83



GRANT THORNTON LLP

2001 Market St., Suite 700 Philadelphia, PA 19103-7065

D +1 215 561 4200

F +1 215 561 1066

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Trustees Community College of Philadelphia (A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the discretely presented component units of Community College of Philadelphia (the "College") as of and for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the College's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the College's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the College's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities and the discretely presented component units of Community College of Philadelphia as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other matters

Required supplementary information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's Discussion and Analysis included on pages 5 through 13 and the required supplementary information on pages 54 through 56 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a required part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. This required supplementary information is the responsibility of management. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. These limited procedures consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other information

The statistical section, demographic statistics, and component unit combining information on pages 58 through 69 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other reporting required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report, dated September 28, 2021, on our consideration of the College's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the College's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the College's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania September 28, 2021

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

June 30, 2021 and 2020

INTRODUCTION

This Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is based upon facts, decisions, and conditions known as of the date of the audit report. The MD&A should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and accompanying notes that follow this section.

Community College of Philadelphia (the College) has prepared its financial statements in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) principles, which establish standards for external financial reporting for public colleges and universities and require the financial statements presented to focus on the College as a whole. These statements include the statistical reporting section in accordance with GASB Statement 44.

The financial results of the Community College of Philadelphia Foundation (the Foundation) and CCP Development, LLC are reported as discrete component units. CCP Development, LLC was organized as a qualified active low-income community business (QALICB) to secure new market tax credit funding for the construction of the College's Career and Advanced Technology Center at 4750 Market Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.

Financial and Institutional Highlights

- COVID-19 caused unprecedented disruptions to the College's operations. All on-campus credit coursework was suspended effective March 16, 2020 and resumed online beginning March 30, 2020. A laptop lending program was immediately implemented to provide students in need of the technology to complete their studies online. Free or discounted internet access was also made available to eligible students. A virtual student support center was established so students may access services including academic advising, tutoring, library services and financial aid online. The college campus and regional centers remained closed except for a very limited amount of coursework where students require practicum, including Dental Hygiene, Phlebotomy, Clinical Microbiology and others. New fully online workforce and professional development programs were created or converted for summer and fall 2020 terms. However, many vocational skills training programs, especially those requiring face to face instructions for effective learning or required by licensing bodies, were canceled or suspended in spring 2020 due to COVID-19.
- In October 2020, the College made the decision that the Spring 2021 semester would continue in a remote fashion except for those courses requiring student hands-on experiences or the use of specialized equipment, such as Dental Hygiene, Phlebotomy, Clinical Microbiology, and a few others.
- In April 2021, the College was awarded \$31.8 million from the Department of Education (DOE) through the Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act (CRRSAA). Of the \$31.8 million awarded, \$8.05 million was allocated to emergency financial aid grants to students and the remaining \$23.75 million was allocated to the College to defray expenses associated with COVID-19 (including lost revenue, reimbursement for expenses already incurred, technology costs associated with a transition to distance education, faculty and staff trainings, and payroll) and to make additional financial grants to students. As of June 30, 2021, the College had drawn down and disbursed \$4 million of the emergency Financial Aid Grants to students and these amounts are included within student aid expenses in the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. As of June 30, 2021, the College had drawn-down and spent \$23.3 million of the institutional portion under the grant to replace lost revenue from academic sources (tuition, auxiliary, fees) and to provide additional emergency financial aid grants to students by way of discharging \$2.7 million of student account balances due to the College. Of the \$23.3 million in institutional award expenditures, \$18.7 million was recorded as federal grants and contracts in the statements of revenues, expenses, expenses, expenses, and changes in net



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

position and the remaining \$4.6 million is recorded as unearned revenue in the statements of net position and represents the portion of the revenue to which the College was not entitled based on the pro-rata portion of emergency financial aid grants to students which had not yet been disbursed to students at year-end.

- During 2021, the College has continued to address the unprecedented disruptions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. Below are highlights of the College's response to the COVID-19 disruptions:
 - o Discharged (forgave) in excess of \$2.75 million of debt from 3,776 student account balances.
 - Provided more than \$12 million of Higher Education Emergency Relief (HEERF) funds from the United States Department of Education directly to students as emergency aid.
 - o Provided loaner laptops to students in need of technology to participate in distance education.
 - Accelerated the deployment of more technology during fiscal year 2021 to expand support of distance learning and remote work from home for employees. The College implemented the use of desktop capture, live streaming, enabled student-produced content, provided centrally managed video lessons for a wide variety of courses, and expanded on-demand resources. All in-person student services were converted to a virtual format, and a Virtual Student Support Services website was established to provide students access to the required services and support.
 - The College also upgraded its Data Center Network Infrastructure to support the increasing demand on its IT resources.
- The City of Philadelphia committed more than \$60 million over five years, from January 2021 through December 2026, to the College for the Catto Scholarship Program. The Catto Scholarship is an antipoverty initiative of the Mayor that not only provides students with free tuition, but also funding for food, transportation to the College, and books via a monthly stipend. The commitment also includes a team of dedicated advisors and counselors to support the scholarship recipients. The Catto Scholarship's first cohort of seventy-four students began classes in January 2021. The cohort has since grown to 132 students. In 2021, the College received \$2.3 million in Catto Scholarship funding.
- Several new workforce and career programs were added through the College's online partnership with Condensed Curriculum International, a national workforce education provider that works exclusively with over 500 public colleges, universities and employers across the country. These offerings included EKG Technician, Pharmacy Technician, Phlebotomy Technician, Clinical Medical Assisting, HVAC, Logistics and Distribution Management, and Electronic Health Record.
- The City and the College were selected by the National League of Cities and the Kresge Foundation as one of 7 cities to pilot technical assistance in supporting Cities, Workforce Boards and Economic Development Partners, and Community Colleges to address student basic needs.
- The College continued to be supported by the Goldman Sachs 10,000 Small Businesses Program grant, which serves 90 businesses annually, and has over 600 alumni who have completed the program over the last 7 years.
- The College continued to expand the Career Connections department. Three new positions were created to increase experiential learning, apprenticeships and career counseling.
- The College continued to hold its tuition and fees at previous years' levels. Tuition and fees have not
 increased since the 2017-2018 academic year. In addition, the general college fee which supports
 student activities was waived and the College utilized HEERF funding during 2021 to relieve students
 of these distance learning course fees.



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

- The College is more affordable than ever for the 2021-2022 academic year with no increase in tuition and fees, a significant increase in available financial aid, and Catto Scholarship.
- Total enrollment declined 13.1% from 22,160 students in 2019-2020 to 19,266 students in 2020-2021.
- Several maintenance and repair projects suspended during the beginning of the COVID-19 pandemic including structural repairs to the CBI garage, Learning Commons Phase I and II, Mint elevator upgrade, music lab, and the DMI lab, were all completed. In addition, the College invested heavily to improve the air quality in its buildings. This included cleaning the air ducts, conducting air flow testing, and replacing or repairing the HVAC systems to ensure it meets the industry standards for reducing airborne infectious aerosol exposure.
- On December 8, 2020 the College issued \$14,580,000 of Series 2020 taxable bonds. On December 9, 2020 the College closed on a New Market Tax Credit (NMTC) deal. The availability of NMTCs has enabled the newly formed discretely presented component unit, CCP Development, LLC, to borrow \$24.9 million to construct the Career and Advanced Technology Center. Both financing arrangements were in addition to the \$9.2 million Series A 2019 bond issued on May 1, 2019, proceeds of which also went towards financing the Career and Advanced Technology Center. The \$33.5 million project consists of the construction of a new 3-story 75,000 square-foot building on the corner of 48th Street and Market Streets in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. Construction started in Fall of 2020. Projected completion is late Spring 2022. Additional funding required for the project will be from the City of Philadelphia, Redevelopment Assistance Capital Program (RACP) grants, New Market Tax Credits, private gifts and loans, or bonds.
- The College purchased a new electronic time and attendance system to replace its paper intensive processes. Phase One was implemented for exempt employees in July 2021. Hourly employees are scheduled to start using the new system later.

Overview of Financial Statements

The College's financial statements focus on the College as a whole, rather than upon individual funds or activities. The GASB reporting model is designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the College's finances and is comprised of three basic statements:

- The *Statement of Net Position* presents information on the College's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets serve as one indicator of how the financial position of the College is changing.
- The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents information showing how the College's net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.
- The *Statement of Cash Flows* is reported using the direct method. The direct method of cash flow reporting portrays net cash flows from operations, financing, and investing receipts and disbursements.

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. The notes contain details on both the accounting policies and procedures that the College has adopted, as well as additional information about amounts reported in the financial statements.



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

Net Position

At June 30, 2021, the College's net position was a negative \$28.4 million, with liabilities of \$294.7 million and assets of \$290.8 million. Net position increased by \$73.8 million in 2021 prior to recording the impact of the post-employment benefit liability. Unrestricted net position increased from a negative \$175.4 million to a negative \$150.8 million. Absent the cumulative impact of the post-employment benefit liability (GASB 75 and 68) reporting requirements, unrestricted net position would currently be at a level of positive \$29.7 million. The other factor contributing to the change in the unrestricted net position value was unfunded depreciation expense for 2021 in the amount of \$7.5 million.

		tion				
		2021	 2020	2019		
Assets: Current assets Noncurrent assets:	\$	75.4	\$ 51.5	\$	48.4	
Loan receivable Bond proceeds available for campus		19.9	-		-	
construction Other long-term investments		9.8 18.5	20.0 18.4		26.5 17.2	
Investment in CCP Development, LLC Capital assets, net		5.0 162.2	158.6		- 159.1	
•			 			
Total assets	\$	290.8	\$ 248.5	\$	251.2	
Deferred outflows of resources	\$	29.2	\$ 5.9	\$	6.6	
Liabilities:						
Current liabilities Noncurrent liabilities	\$	36.6 258.1	\$ 29.1 215.1	\$	32.8 260.3	
Total liabilities	\$	294.7	\$ 244.2	\$	293.1	
Deferred inflows of resources	\$	53.7	\$ 75.5	\$	63.5	
Net position: Net investment in capital assets Restricted: Expendable Expendable	\$	116.7 5.7 (150.8)	\$ 104.7 5.4 (175.4)	\$	103.9 5.3 (208.0)	
Total net position	\$	(28.4)	\$ (65.3)	\$	(98.8)	

Assets

Current assets increased by \$23.9 million during 2021. Short-term investments, receivable from government agencies, accrued interest receivable, other assets and cash and cash equivalent increased, while net accounts receivable decreased.

Noncurrent assets increased by \$18.4 million. Bond proceeds available for campus construction decreased as construction of the Library and Learning Commons progressed towards completion and expenses started to accrue related to the Center for Advanced Technology as design and planning got underway.



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

The College's capital assets as of June 30, 2021 net of accumulated depreciation were \$162.2 million, an increase of \$3.6 million over the amount reported for 2020 of \$158.6 million. The increase in the net value of capital assets is related to the increase in the value of capital additions exceeding the accumulated depreciation. Total current liabilities increased by \$7.5 million in 2021. Payables to government agencies increased by \$0.2 million primarily due to timing in processing PHEAA state grants student aid. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities increased by \$3.5 million primarily due to timing.

The College self-insures its employee medical plan. The College purchases stop loss insurance with a limit of \$250,000 to cap institutional financial exposure for individuals with extraordinarily large claims in a policy year.

The College's outstanding long-term debt was \$69.5 million as of June 30, 2021, an increase of \$7.0 million from June 2020. This increase is due to the issuance of the Series 2020 bonds to partially finance the construction of the Career and Advanced Technology Center. The pension liability amount for 2021 also includes \$4.2 million related to GASB 68, which requires the College to record its relative proportion of the net funded status of certain state cost sharing pension plans. The cumulative estimated value for the accrued other post-employment benefit liability in 2021, 2020, and 2019 was \$180.5 million, \$143.6 million, \$180.3 million, respectively. Absent this reporting requirement, the College's net assets as of June 30, 2021 would have been at a level of \$152.1 million.

Capital lease obligations include mainly technology associated with academic and administrative computing.

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

The change in net position for 2021, 2020, and 2019 was a positive \$36.9 million, \$33.5 million, and \$10.6 million, respectively. The following table quantifies the changes:

	Revenues, I Y	ange: 0,	-		
	 2021	2020			2019
			(In millions)		
Operating revenues:					
Net tuition and fees	\$ 28.4	\$	30.5	\$	32.8
Auxiliary enterprises and other sources	 0.4		1.5		1.6
Total	 28.8		32.0		34.4
Operating expenses	 143.0		133.0		145.7
Operating loss	(114.2)		(101.0)		(111.3)
Net nonoperating revenues	 138.0		122.5		110.1
Change in net assets before other					
revenues	23.8		21.5		(1.2)
Capital appropriations	 13.0		12.0		11.8
Total change in net position	\$ 36.8	\$	\$33.5	\$	\$10.6



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

Operating Revenues

The largest sources of operating revenue for the College are student tuition and fees and auxiliary enterprises revenues. In both 2021 and 2020, the tuition charge was \$159 per credit. The Technology Fee, General College Fee, and Course Fee also remained unchanged from prior year. While the General College Fee was assessed on students, the College decided during the year to apply HEERF grant funding from the DOE to reimburse the General College Fee for students. The College charges course fees for selected high-cost courses. Course fees range from \$85 to \$345. Average total tuition and fee revenue per credit for 2021 was \$224.

Tuition and fee revenue totaled \$62,067,832 in 2021 and \$69,907,462 in 2020, a decline of 11.2%. Total enrolled credit headcount declined 13.1% for the same period.

Scholarship allowance amounts for 2021 and 2020 totaled \$33,644,235 and \$39,371,389, respectively. The scholarship allowance represents tuition and fee payments made using public and private grants and scholarships. The decrease in scholarship allowance amounts between 2021 and 2020 is reflective of the 13.1% decrease in overall credit enrollment. While the maximum Pell award increased from \$6,195 in 2019-2020 to \$6,345 in 2020-2021, it did not contribute to any increase in scholarship allowance due to a significant decrease in Pell eligible students attending the College.

Gift revenue from the Community College of Philadelphia Foundation (the Foundation) in the amount of \$12,100 was received in 2021 and is reported in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. This gift was used to partially pay the College's cost for its partnership with Single Stop USA. Single Stop USA is a nonprofit organization that delivers services to families nationwide by connecting students to state and federal financial resources and local community services. The aim is to help students overcome economic barriers, continue with their education and move toward economic mobility.

Nonoperating Revenues

Commonwealth appropriations in 2021, excluding capital appropriations, totaled \$32,388,574, a decrease of \$19,442 (0.1%) over the \$32,408,016 received in 2020.

Total 2021 City funding was \$41,628,751, a \$5.6 million increase (15.5%) over the amount received in 2020. Of the funding appropriation, \$33,954,253 was used for operating budget purposes in 2021 and \$2,319,544 was used for CATTO Scholarships. In 2020, \$29,846,548 of the total appropriation was used for operating purposes. Net investment income was \$450,829 in 2021 and \$1,691,135 in 2020.

As mentioned above, non-operating revenues increased by 12.7% from \$122.5 million in 2019-2020 to \$138.1 million in 2020-2021. This included the impact of \$24.7 million in additional grant funding received from the DOE through the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) and Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations (CRRSAA) Acts during the year of which \$6.7 million was spent on student aid and \$18 million was spent on laptops, PPE, software services and converting on-campus courses to online format, as well as lost tuition, fee, and auxiliary revenues as a result of COVID-19.

Capital Appropriations

The Commonwealth provided capital funding for debt service and capital purchases in the amounts of \$5,812,136 and \$5,819,210 for 2021 and 2020, respectively. The College used \$7,177,918 of the total City of Philadelphia appropriation of \$41,628,751 in 2021 for debt service and capital purchases. In 2020, City of Philadelphia appropriations used for debt service and capital purchases were \$6,212,659.



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

	Expenses by Function Year ended June 30,								
		2021		2020	2019				
Instruction Public service Academic support Student services Institutional support Physical plant operations Depreciation Student aid Auxiliary enterprises	\$	50,332,840 37,525 14,762,587 18,891,473 28,427,722 10,105,154 7,463,771 12,644,020 341,777	\$	49,333,338 104,057 13,749,022 16,672,597 19,176,012 13,444,993 7,782,553 12,052,409 658,373	\$	56,714,890 97,457 16,404,900 20,529,207 22,639,568 14,423,723 7,939,447 6,250,428 684,534			
Total operating expenses	\$	143,006,869	\$	132,973,354	\$	145,684,154			

Exclusive of student aid and depreciation expenses, the College's operating expenses totaled \$122,899,078 in 2021 and \$113,138,392 in 2020. The College's five-year Collective Bargaining Agreement with Faculty and Classified employee unions that was ratified in September 2013 expired August 2016. On April 3, 2019, the College and the members of Unions reached a tentative agreement and entered into certain Memorandum of Agreements to amend the terms and conditions of the respective Collective Bargaining Agreements. The Board of Trustees of the College and the membership of the Unions approved the Memorandum of Agreements on April 4, 2019 and April 11, 2019, respectively, which, among other things, extended the term of the Collective Bargaining Agreements to August 31, 2022.

In 2018, the College adopted GASB 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions (OPEB). Under GASB 75, the College reports the Net OPEB Liability (NOL) on the statement of net position. Changes to the NOL are recognized either in the OPEB Expense and/or as deferred inflows/outflows. The value of the expense for 2021, 2020, and 2019 was a credit of \$8,754,336, \$24,859,895, and \$5,802,354, respectively.

	Expenses by Natural Classification Year ended June 30,									
		2021		2020		2019				
Salaries Benefits Contracted services Supplies Depreciation Student aid Other post-employment benefits Other	\$	74,041 32,570 9,247 5,564 7,464 12,644 (8,754) 10,231	\$	77,819 34,790 9,276 4,467 7,783 12,052 (24,590) 11,376	\$	77,462 34,979 8,045 3,059 7,939 6,250 (5,426) 13,376				
Total operating expenses		143,007		132,973		145,684				
Interest on capital asset-related debt service		3,882		3,604		3,602				
Total nonoperating expenses		3,882		3,604		3,602				
Total expenses	\$	146,889	\$	136,577	\$	149,286				



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

The COVID-19 pandemic has significantly impacted the financial and educational planning during the fiscal year 2020-21. While the College's budget was initially designed to reopen the campus Spring 2021, that did not occur. The main campus and regional center sites remained closed to most students and staff during the 2020-2021 fiscal year, resulting in the College spending approximately \$20.5 million less than budgeted. In addition, the College received approximately \$12.9 million in HEERF Funds from the DOE to offset lost tuition, auxiliary, and fees revenue.

The College incurred lower than budgeted expenses in the following categories: supplies, contracted services (security, cleaning, interrupters), maintenance & repairs, travel, and hospitality. Overall, the College spent approximately \$7.5 million less than budgeted for non-personnel-related expenses. In addition, the College received HEERF funds from the DOE that were used to reimburse several related COVID-19 expenditures associated with remote learning, work and to prepare for a safe reopening of its campuses.

A significant number of vacant positions, voluntary furlough, coupled with offering a lower number of academic sections which required limited use of part-time staff resulted in total salaries being \$5.8 million less than budget. The College also spent \$7.2 million less for staff benefits than budgeted as many elective procedures were postponed or delayed.

Schedule of Fund Balances

The following chart shows fund balances in the four fund groups: Unrestricted, Restricted, Endowment and Plant. The 2021, 2020 and 2019 amounts reported for unrestricted operations funds were reduced by the impact of accrued expense liability for post-employment benefits. The impact of GASB 75 reporting in 2021 was a negative \$176,276,116, while the impact of GASB 68 reporting was \$4,210,037. The negative unrestricted plant fund balance reflects the cumulative impact of unfunded depreciation expense.

	2021	2020	2019	
Total unrestricted fund	\$(128,209,481)	\$(166,121,744)	\$(200,606,226)	
Endowment fund: Quasi-endowment (unrestricted)	238,533	1,090,992	1,308,208	
Total endowment	238,533	1,090,992	1,308,208	
Plant fund: Net investment in capital assets Restricted expendable - capital projects Unrestricted	116,734,123 5,726,658 (22,857,712)	104,725,788 5,438,941 (10,401,053)	103,868,972 5,285,060 (8,662,532)	
Total plant fund	99,603,070	99,763,676	100,491,500	
Total net position	\$ (28,367,879)	\$ (65,267,076)	\$ (98,806,518)	

Community College of Philadelphia Foundation

The Foundation was established in 1985. Total assets for 2021 and 2020 were \$19.0 million and \$15.2 million, respectively. Total unrestricted net position for 2021 and 2020 for the Foundation was \$1.9 million and \$1.7 million, respectively. The remaining net position is restricted based upon donor intent.



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

CCP Development, LLC

CCP Development, LLC, is a Pennsylvania limited liability company established in 2020 for purposes of obtaining New Market Tax Credit (NMTC) financing for the construction of the Career and Advanced Technology Center at 4750 Market Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. Total assets for 2021 were \$34.2 million and total net position was \$5.0 million.

Future Impacts

For 2022, City of Philadelphia funding to the College was increased by \$4.0 million over the amount received for 2021 of which \$4.0 million is reserved for a new scholarship program. However, there was no increase in the Commonwealth appropriation received during the first quarter of 2022, and no increase is expected for the remaining quarters of the year. The College's Board voted not to increase student tuition and fees for 2021 and 2022. Credit hour enrollments for the Fall 2021 semester are trending 13.5% below enrollments of Fall 2020. The total credit hours generated by the late summer session, a 2022 term, were 18% higher than the previous year.

In May 2021, the College was awarded \$54.9 million from the DOE through the American Rescue Plan (ARP). No amounts were spent or drawn down under the ARP award as of June 30, 2021.

The remaining balance from the CRRSAA and ARP grant funding will be drawn down and spent in 2022 and 2023. While the disruptions from COVID-19 are currently expected to be temporary, there is uncertainty around the duration. Therefore, while the College expects this matter to continue to negatively impact its financial position for 2022, the related financial impact cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.

Requests for information

Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Controller's Office, Community College of Philadelphia, 1700 Spring Garden Street, M1-7, Philadelphia, PA 19130.

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

June 30,

	Business-Type Activities					Compor	Component Unit			
		The Commu	inity (College		The Commu	inity (College		CCP
		of Phila	delph	nia		of Philadelphia Foundation				lopment, LLC
		2021		2020	2021		2020		2021	
ASSETS										
CURRENT ASSETS										
Cash and cash equivalents (Note B)	\$	21,645,501	\$	19,589,705	\$	1,452,851	\$	1,622,503	\$	557,226
Short-term investments (Note B)		31,630,541		22,557,016		1,880,952		858,020		-
Debt proceeds available for CATC construction (Note M)		-		-		-		-		22,394,729
Accounts receivable, net (Note C)		3,539,956		5,575,165		80,072		308,190		-
Receivable from government agencies (Note G)		16,544,129		2,712,287		-		-		-
Other assets		1,996,296		1,056,784		7,854		5,758		
Total current assets		75,356,423		51,490,957		3,421,729		2,794,471		22,951,955
NON-CURRENT ASSETS										
Endowment investments (Note B)		-		-		15,562,198		12,369,001		-
Accounts receivable, net (Note C)		-		-		-		41,701		-
Loan receivable (Note M)		19,880,421		-		-		-		-
Bond proceeds available for campus construction		9,779,803		19,978,506		-		-		-
Other long-term investments (Note B)		18,523,865		18,399,026		-		-		-
Investment in CCP Development, LLC		5,023,069		-		-		-		-
Capital assets, net (Note D)		162,282,106		158,579,658		-				11,273,412
Total non-current assets	:	215,489,264		196,957,190		15,562,198		12,410,702		11,273,412
Total assets	\$	290,845,687	\$	248,448,147	\$	18,983,927	\$	15,205,173	\$	34,225,367
Deferred outflows of resources:										
Deferred outflows	\$	29,242,720	\$	5,936,366	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION - CONTINUED

June 30,

	Business-Ty	/pe Activities	Compo	onent Unit	Component Unit
		unity College		unity College	CCP
	of Phila	adelphia	of Philadelpl	hia Foundation	Development, LLC
	2021	2020	2021	2020	2021
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION					
CURRENT LIABILITIES					
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note E)	\$ 21,293,765	\$ 17,762,425	\$ 869,020	\$ 838,980	\$ 3,257,298
Payable to government agencies (Note G)	423,268	269,549	-	-	-
Deposits	277,805	238,612	1,931	4,156	-
Unearned revenue	5,927,233	2,080,764	356,577	280,063	-
Current portion of capital lease obligation (Note F)	378,638	468,149	-	-	-
Current portion of long-term debt (Note F)	7,600,000	7,557,284	-	-	-
Unamortized bond premium	728,918	728,918			
Total current liabilities	36,629,627	29,105,701	1,227,528	1,123,199	3,257,298
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES					
Accrued liabilities (Note E)	1,777,837	1,554,638	-		_
Annuity payable	1,777,007	1,004,000	37,812	12,516	_
Deposits	310,000	250.000	07,012	12,010	_
Capital lease obligation (Note F)	71,477	450,114			_
Long-term debt (Note F)	69,480,000	62,500,000			_
Notes payable (Note M)		02,000,000			25,945,000
Unamortized bond premium	5,982,825	6,711,743	-	-	20,040,000
Other post-employment benefits liability (Note H)	180,486,153	143,624,506	-	-	-
Other post-employment benefits liability (Note H)	180,480,153	143,024,500			
Total non-current liabilities	258,108,292	215,091,001	37,812	12,516	25,945,000
Total liabilities	\$ 294,737,919	\$ 244,196,702	\$ 1,265,340	\$ 1,135,715	\$ 29,202,298
Deferred inflows of resources:					
Deferred inflows	\$ 53,718,367	\$ 75,454,887	\$ 6,162	\$ -	\$ -
Net position:					
Net investment in capital assets	\$ 116,734,123	\$ 104,725,788	\$-	\$-	\$-
Restricted:					
Nonexpendable:					
Scholarships, awards and faculty chair	-	-	13,244,521	10,137,142	-
Annuities	-	-	7,504	2,997	-
Expendable:					
Scholarships, awards and faculty chair	-	-	2,323,305	2,168,423	-
Capital projects	5,726,658	5,438,941	202,829	77,511	5,023,069
Unrestricted	(150,828,660)	(175,431,805)	1,934,266	1,683,385	
Total net position	\$ (28,367,879)	\$ (65,267,076)	\$ 17,712,425	\$ 14,069,458	\$ 5,023,069
i		. (,,	, ,		,,

Community College of Philadelphia (A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Years ended June 30,

	Business-Type Activities The Community College of Philadelphia		Component Unit The Community College		Component Unit CCP
			of Philadelph	ia Foundation	Development, LLC
	2021	2020	2021	2020	2021
Operating revenues					
Student tuition	\$ 46,586,217	\$ 52,897,863	\$-	\$-	\$-
Student fees	15,481,615	17,009,599	-	-	-
Less: scholarship allowance	(33,644,235)	(39,371,389)			
Net student tuition and fees	28,423,597	30,536,073	-	-	-
Auxiliary enterprises	407,546	1,412,855	-	-	-
Gifts	-	-	1,948,496	1,465,461	-
Other sources	23,291	37,591			
Total operating revenues	28,854,434	31,986,519	1,948,496	1,465,461	
Operating expenses (Note J)					
Educational and general:					
Instruction	50,332,840	49,333,338	155,625	109,062	-
Public service	37,525	104,057	-	-	-
Academic support	14,762,587	13,749,022	1,056,158	1,159,053	-
Student services	18,891,473	16,672,597	221,416	184,634	-
Institutional support	28,427,722	19,176,012	304,956	642,882	-
Physical plant operations	10,105,154	13,444,993	-	-	-
Depreciation	7,463,771	7,782,553	-	-	-
Student aid	12,644,020	12,052,409	1,114,726	791,771	-
Auxiliary enterprises	341,777	658,373			
Total operating expenses	143,006,869	132,973,354	2,852,881	2,887,402	
OPERATING LOSS	\$ (114,152,435)	\$ (100,986,835)	\$ (904,385)	\$ (1,421,941)	<u>\$</u> -

Community College of Philadelphia (A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - CONTINUED

Years ended June 30,

	Business-Type Activities The Community College of Philadelphia		Component Unit The Community College of Philadelphia Foundation		Component Unit CCP
					Development, LLC
	2021	2020	2021	2020	2021
Non-operating revenues (expenses)					
Commonwealth appropriations (Note K)	\$ 32,388,574	\$ 32,408,016	\$-	\$-	\$-
City appropriations (Note K)	34,450,833	29,846,548	-	-	-
Federal grants and contracts	65,187,493	52,337,221	-	-	-
Gifts from the Community College of					
Philadelphia Foundation	12,100	95,000	(12,100)	(95,000)	-
Commonwealth grants and contracts	6,060,615	6,620,870	-	-	-
Nongovernmental grants and contracts	2,884,361	2,521,738	1,391,006	1,713,173	-
Net investment income	450,829	1,691,135	3,168,446	486,556	-
Interest on capital asset-related debt service	(3,882,024)	(3,604,374)	-	-	-
Other nonoperating revenues	508,799	578,254			
Net non-operating revenues	138,061,580	122,494,408	4,547,352	2,104,729	
Gain before other revenues,					
expenses, gains or losses	23,909,145	21,507,573	3,642,967	682,788	-
Capital appropriations	12,990,052	12,031,869			
Increase in net position	36,899,197	33,539,442	3,642,967	682,788	-
-					
Net position, beginning	(65,267,076)	(98,806,518)	14,069,458	13,386,670	
Net position, ending	\$ (28,367,879)	\$ (65,267,076)	\$ 17,712,425	\$ 14,069,458	\$

Community College of Philadelphia (A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended June 30,

(Business-Type Activities - College Only)

	2021	2020
Cash flows from operating activities:		
Tuition and fees	\$ 21,012,450	\$ 29,438,274
Payments to suppliers	(24,977,819)	(23,986,594)
Payments to employees	(72,959,440)	(77,609,032)
Payments for employee benefits	(31,503,410)	(35,601,697)
Payments for student aid	(12,644,021)	(12,052,409)
Auxiliary enterprises	407,546	1,432,674
Other cash receipts	42,722	(67,470)
Net cash used in operating activities	(120,621,972)	(118,446,254)
Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:		
Commonwealth appropriations	32,416,078	32,453,515
City appropriations	34,450,833	29,846,548
Gifts and grants	74,270,784	57,576,382
Other nonoperating	607,992	467,698
Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities	141,745,687	120,344,143
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:		
Commonwealth capital appropriations	5,812,136	5,819,210
City capital appropriations	7,177,918	6,212,659
Capital contributions to CCP Development, LLC	(5,023,069)	-
Proceeds from long-term debt	14,580,000	-
Decrease in bond proceeds available for campus construction	10,198,703	6,468,349
Purchases of capital assets	(11,166,218)	(7,236,601)
Principal payments on long-term debt and amortization of capital leases	(8,025,433)	(7,714,266)
Interest payments on long-term debt and capital leases	(3,993,998)	(3,778,257)
Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities	9,560,039	(228,906)
Cash flows from investing activities:		
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments	37,007,297	58,567,715
Loan receivable	(19,880,421)	-
Purchases of investments	(46,205,663)	(64,535,718)
Interest on investments	450,829	1,763,370
Net cash used in investing activities	(28,627,958)	(4,204,633)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH	2,055,796	(2,535,650)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning	19,589,705	22,125,355
Cash and cash equivalents, ending	\$ 21,645,501	\$ 19,589,705

Community College of Philadelphia (A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED

Years ended June 30,

(Business-Type Activities - College Only)

	2021	2020
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in operating activities:		
Operating loss	\$ (114,152,435)	\$ (100,986,835)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used in		
operating activities:		
Depreciation	7,463,771	7,782,553
Changes in assets and liabilities:		
Accounts receivable	(11,867,534)	(1,448,323)
Other assets	(939,512)	480,872
Loans to students and employees	70,900	71,814
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	8,172,172	395,448
Unearned revenue	(614,999)	(152,135)
Other post-employment benefits	(8,754,336)	(24,589,648)
Net cash used in operating activities	\$ (120,621,972)	\$ (118,446,254)



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

The Community College of Philadelphia (the College) operates in accordance with the provisions of Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (the Commonwealth) legislation and through the sponsorship of the City of Philadelphia (the City). For financial reporting purposes, the College has been determined to be a component unit of the City, and, as such, has adopted the applicable provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Component Units

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 61, *The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus - an Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34*, GASB Statement No. 39, *Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units - an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14*, GASB Statement No. 80, *Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units - an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14*, and GASB Statement No. 14, *The Financial Reporting Entity*, the College has determined that the Community College of Philadelphia Foundation (the Foundation) and CCP Development LLC should be included in the College's financial statements as discretely presented component units. A component unit is a legally separate organization for which the primary institution is financially accountable or to which the primary institution is closely related.

The Foundation was established to serve as an organization responsible for college fund raising activities. The bylaws of the Foundation give the College's board of trustees the authority to amend the Articles of Incorporation of the Foundation at any time. Although the College does not control the timing or amount of receipts from the Foundation, the resources, or income thereon, the Foundation holds investments that are used exclusively for the benefit, support, and promotion of the College for its educational activities. Because these resources held by the Foundation can only be used by, or for the benefit of, the College, the Foundation is considered a component unit of the College and is discretely presented in the College's financial statements.

CCP Development LLC was established on October 20, 2020 under the Limited Liability Company Law of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and organized as a Qualified Active Low Income Community Business (QALICB) to secure New Market Tax Credits (NMTC) to finance the construction of a career-based education and training facility at 4750 Market Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. The facility will create jobs and provide training for the low-income community where it is located. CCP Development LLC is 90% owned by the College and 10% owned by Career and Advanced Technology Center, Inc., a 501(c)3 corporation. Because of its relationship with the College, CCP Development LLC is considered a component unit of the College and is discretely presented in the College's financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP), as prescribed by the GASB. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met.

The College has determined that it functions as a Business-Type Activity, as defined by the GASB. The effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from these financial statements.

The College's policy is to define operating activities in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position as those that generally result from exchange transactions such as the payment received for


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

services and payment made for the purchase of goods and services. Certain other transactions are reported as non-operating activities. These non-operating activities include the College's operating and capital appropriations from the Commonwealth and the City; federal, Commonwealth, and private grants; net investment income; gifts; interest expense; and gains/losses on disposals of capital assets.

Government Appropriations

Revenue from the Commonwealth and the City is recognized in the fiscal year during which the funds are appropriated to the College. The College is fiscally dependent upon these appropriations. Specific accounting policies with regard to government appropriations are as follows:

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

General Commonwealth legislation establishing community colleges provides for the reimbursement of certain college expenses from Commonwealth funds appropriated for this purpose. Act 46 enacted in July 2005 changed the original basis of allocating operating funds to Commonwealth community colleges from a formula approach based upon full-time equivalent (FTE) students taught in the current fiscal year to a Commonwealth-wide community college appropriation. Under Act 46, the Commonwealth-wide operating budget appropriation for community colleges is to be distributed among each of the 14 colleges in 3 parts: base funding, growth funding and high-priority (economic development) program funding. The provisions of Act 46 are intended to ensure that base operating funding for each college will at least equal the amount of funds received in the prior year. Annually, 25% of any new dollars in the operating funding granted community colleges is to be distributed proportionally among the colleges experiencing growth in the prior year based upon their share of the FTE growth. Colleges whose enrollments are stable, or decline do not receive any increase from the growth funding.

The other significant operating funding change as a result of Act 46 was the establishment of Economic Development (high priority) program funding. High-priority program funding is based upon prior year enrollments in program areas defined by the Commonwealth to contribute to trained worker growth in critical employment areas. Using prior year FTE enrollments in targeted programs as the allocation mechanism, each college is to receive a proportionate share of the available funds allocated to high-priority programs.

For 2021 and 2020, the provisions of Act 46 were not followed in allocating operational funds to Pennsylvania community colleges.

Under the provisions of Act 46, a separate revolving pool was established for community college capital funding. Capital funding, which may include major equipment and furniture purchases, capital improvements to buildings and grounds, debt service on major capital projects, and net rental costs for eligible capital leases, is reimbursed at the rate of 50%. Capital costs not previously approved for annual funding are subject to a competitive application process, with the allocation of available funds made by the Pennsylvania Department of Education using Commonwealth-wide criteria.

Any excesses or deficiencies between provisional payments and the final annual reimbursement calculation of annual Commonwealth funding are reflected as a payable or receivable from the Commonwealth.

Net Position

The College classifies its net position into the following four net position categories:

Net investment in capital assets: Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, repair, or improvement of those assets.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

Restricted - nonexpendable: Net position subject to externally imposed conditions that the College must maintain them in perpetuity.

Restricted - expendable: Net position whose use is subject to externally imposed conditions that can be fulfilled by the actions of the College or by the passage of time.

Unrestricted: All other categories of net position. Unrestricted net position may be designated by actions of the College's Board of Trustees.

The College has adopted a policy of generally utilizing restricted - expendable funds, when available, prior to unrestricted funds.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The College considers all cash accounts and demand deposits with financial banking institutions to be cash. The College considers all short-term investments (primarily certificates of deposit) with a maturity of 90 days or less to be cash equivalents.

Investments

Investments in marketable securities are stated at fair value. Valuations for non-marketable securities are provided by external investment managers and are based upon net asset value (NAV) as provided by investment managers.

Dividends, interest and net gains or losses on investments of endowments and similar funds are reported in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. Any net earnings not expended are included in net position categories as follows:

- 1. As increases in restricted nonexpendable net position if the terms of the gift require that they be added to the principal of a permanent endowment fund;
- 2. As increases in restricted expendable net position if the terms of the gift or the College's interpretation of relevant Commonwealth law impose restrictions on the current use of the income or net gains; and
- 3. As increases in unrestricted net position in all other cases.

The College policy permits investments in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certificates of deposit, commercial paper rated A1 by Standard and Poor's Corporation or P1 by Moody's Commercial Paper Record, bankers' acceptances, repurchase agreements, and the Commonfund's Intermediate Term Fund and Multi-Strategy Bond Fund, and specifically approved fixed income securities. The investment practice of the Foundation includes the use of PFM Asset Management as its outsourced chief investment officer. The Foundation also uses Bryn Mawr Trust as its custodian of endowment funds. The Foundation transitioned to Vanguard Institutional Advisory Services as its outsourced Chief Investment Officer in November 2019.

Capital Assets

Real estate assets, including improvements, are generally stated at cost. Furnishings and equipment are stated at cost at date of acquisition or, in the case of gifts, at fair value at date of donation.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

Assets are depreciated using the straight-line method. The range of estimated useful lives by asset categories is summarized as follows:

Asset Category	Years
Buildings and improvements	10 to 50
Equipment and furniture	3 to 10
Library books	10
Microforms	5
Software	3
System software	10

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not increase the value of the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized.

Compensated Absences

Employees earn the right to be compensated during absences for vacation leave and sick leave. Accrued vacation is the amount earned by all eligible employees through the statement of net position date. Upon retirement, these employees are entitled to receive payment for this accrued balance as defined in the College policy and collective bargaining agreements.

Deposits and Unearned Revenue

Deposits and advance payments received for tuition and fees related to certain summer programs and tuition received for the following academic year are deferred and are recorded as revenues when instruction is provided.

Student Fees

Included in student fees for the year ended June 30, 2020 are general college fees of \$1,162,740, which have been designated for use by the various student organizations and activities. General college fees in the amount of \$1,483,086 were waived for students for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the College charged the waived fees to its Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund (HEERF) grant from the United States Department of Education (DOE), which is recorded within federal grants and contracts within the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.

Tax Status

The College generally is exempt from federal and Commonwealth taxes due to its status as an unincorporated association established by the Pennsylvania Community College Act of 1963 (the Act). Under the Act, community colleges are activities of the Commonwealth.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant estimates include the allowance for doubtful accounts, useful lives of capital assets, assumptions related to self-insurance reserves, and assumptions related to pension and other post-employment benefit accruals. Actual results could differ from those estimates.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

Scholarship Discounts and Allowances

Student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other revenues from students, are reported net of scholarship discounts and allowances in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. Scholarship discounts and allowances are the difference between the stated charge for goods and services provided by the College and the amount that is paid by students and/or third parties making payments on students' behalf. Certain governmental grants are recorded as either operating or non-operating revenues in the College's financial statements. To the extent that revenues from such programs are used to satisfy tuition and fees and other student charges, the College has recorded a scholarship discount and allowance.

Self-Insurance

The College participates in a self-insurance medical plan with a reinsurance limit of \$250,000 is in place to limit institutional financial exposure for individuals with extraordinarily large claims in a policy year. The College has established a self-insurance accrued liability account for incurred claims, as well as an estimate of claims incurred but not reported. The College's self-insurance liability at June 30, 2021 and 2020 was \$1,323,300 and \$1,510,300, respectively, based upon an actuarial calculation based upon historical claim experience.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statements of net position include a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net position that applies to future periods and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources until that time. In addition to liabilities, the statement element represents an acquisition for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of a net position that applies to future periods and will not be recognized as an acquisition of a net position that applies to future periods and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources until that time. The College's deferred outflow/inflow relates to amounts recorded in connection with GASB Statement No. 68, *Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions* (GASB 68), amounts recorded in connection with GASB Statement No. 75, *Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions* (GASB 75), as well as the advance refunding of the 2008 Series Community College Revenue Bonds in September 2015.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the State Employees Retirement System (SERS) and the Pennsylvania Public School Employees Retirement System (PSERS) and additions to/deductions from the SERS' and PSERS' fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by SERS/PSERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, *Leases*. This statement provides guidance for lease contracts for nonfinancial assets - including vehicles, heavy equipment and buildings - but excludes non-exchange transactions, including donated assets, and leases of intangible assets (such as patents and software licenses). The lease definition now focuses on a contract that conveys control of the right to use another entity's nonfinancial assets, which is referred to in the new Statement No. 87 as the underlying asset. Under Statement No. 87, a lessee government is required to recognize (1) a lease liability and (2) an intangible asset representing the lessee's right to use the leased asset. A lessor government is required to recognize (1) a lease receivable and (2) a deferred inflow of resources. A lessor will continue to report

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

the leased asset in its financial statements. The requirements of Statement No. 87, as amended, are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. The College is still assessing the impact of Statement No. 87 on its financial statements.

COVID-19 Disruptions

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a novel coronavirus (COVID-19) as a pandemic, which continues to spread throughout the United States. As a result, a COVID-19 Exposure Prevention, Preparedness, and Response Plan was implemented by the College. A COVID-19 Safety Team was established to monitor the developing public health situation and ensure the College is in compliance with public health guidance from agencies such as the U.S. Center for Disease Control and Prevention, the Pennsylvania Department of Health, the Department of Public Health for the City of Philadelphia, and the Pennsylvania Department of Education, in order to safeguard the health of its students, employees and community members.

COVID-19 caused unprecedented disruptions to the College's operations. All on-campus credit coursework was suspended effective March 16, 2020 and resumed online beginning March 30, 2020. A laptop lending program was immediately implemented to provide students in need of the technology to complete their studies online. Free or discounted internet access was also made available to eligible students. A virtual student support center was established so students may access services including academic advising, tutoring, library services and financial aid online. The college campus and regional centers remained closed except for a very limited amount of coursework where students require practicum, including Dental Hygiene, Phlebotomy, Clinical Microbiology and others. New fully online workforce and professional development programs were created or converted for summer and fall 2020 terms. However, many vocational skills training programs, especially those requiring face to face instructions for effective learning or required by licensing bodies, were canceled or suspended in spring 2020 due to COVID-19. Some of these programs resumed on campus during the year ended June 30, 2021, including ServSafe Food Protection, Electrical Wiring, Massage Therapy, and others.

In October 2020, the College was awarded \$963,525 from the Commonwealth through the Governor's Emergency Education Relief Fund (GEER), all of which was applied during the year ended June 30, 2021 to defray costs related to COVD-19 which were incurred from March 13, 2020 to September 30, 2021. The amount is recorded as federal grants and contracts non-operating revenues on the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.

In April 2020, the College was awarded \$16.1 million from the DOE through the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act. Of the \$16.1 million awarded, \$8.05 million was allocated to emergency financial aid grants to students and the remaining \$8.05 million was allocated to the College to cover any costs associated with significant changes to the delivery of instruction due to COVID-19. During the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the College had drawn down and disbursed \$2.65 million and \$5.4 million, respectively, of the emergency financial aid grants to students and these amounts are included within student aid expenses in the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the College had drawn-down and spent \$6.85 million and \$1.2 million, respectively, of the institutional portion under the grant to purchase laptops for students, expand remote access and distance education software licensing, purchase personal protective equipment, for converting on-campus courses to remote learning, and reimbursement for online distance fees which were waived for students during the year ended June 30, 2021. The amounts are recorded as federal grants and contracts non-operating revenues on the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.

The College was awarded an additional \$5.7 million from the CARES Minority Serving Institutions (MSI) grant of which \$2.4 million and \$145,000, respectively, was applied during the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 to offset the cost of closing the parking garage as well as lost tuition and fees revenue. The amounts are recorded as federal grants and contracts non-operating revenues on the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

In April 2021, the College was awarded \$31.8 million from the DOE through the Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act (CRRSAA). Of the \$31.8 million awarded, \$8.05 million was allocated to emergency financial aid grants to students and the remaining \$23.75 million was allocated to the College to defray expenses associated with COVID-19 (including lost revenue, reimbursement for expenses already incurred, technology costs associated with a transition to distance education. faculty and staff trainings, and payroll) and to make additional financial grants to students. As of June 30, 2021, the College had drawn down and disbursed \$4 million of the emergency Financial Aid Grants to students and these amounts are included within student aid expenses in the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. As of June 30, 2021, the College had drawn-down and spent \$23.3 million of the institutional portion under the grant to replace lost revenue from academic sources (tuition, auxiliary, fees) and to provide additional emergency financial aid grants to students by way of discharging \$2.7 million of student account balances due to the College. Of the \$23.3 million in institutional award expenditures, \$18.7 million was recorded as federal grants and contracts in the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position and the remaining \$4.6 million is recorded as unearned revenue in the statements of net position and represents the portion of the revenue to which the College was not entitled based on the pro-rata portion of emergency financial aid grants to students which had not yet been disbursed to students at year-end.

In May 2021, the College was awarded \$54.9 million from the DOE through the American Rescue Plan (ARP). No amounts were spent or drawn down under the ARP award as of June 30, 2021.

The remaining balance from the CRRSAA and ARP grant funding will be drawn down and spent in 2022 and 2023. While the disruptions from COVID-19 are currently expected to be temporary, there is uncertainty around the duration. Therefore, while the College expects this matter to continue to negatively impact its financial position for 2022, the related financial impact cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.

NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The College invests its funds in accordance with the Board of Trustees' investment policy, which authorizes the College to invest in cash equivalents which consist of treasury bills, money market funds, commercial paper, bankers' acceptances, repurchase agreements and certificates of deposit; fixed income securities including U.S. government and agency securities, corporate notes and bonds, asset-backed bonds, floating rate securities and Yankee notes and bonds; and mutual funds including the Commonfund Multi-Strategy Bond Fund and Commonfund Intermediate Fund. Regardless of fund classifications, certain general tenets apply. Investments in all classifications seek to maintain significant liquidity and maximize annual income for the College while avoiding excessive risk. Specific objectives include maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet anticipated cash needs and the preservation of principal. The College recognizes that it may be necessary to forego opportunities for potential large gains to achieve a reasonable risk posture. Certain investments are prohibited, including equity securities, commodities and futures contracts, private placements, options, limited partnerships, venture capital, tangible personal property, direct real estate, short-selling, margin transactions and certain derivative instruments. Diversification, insofar as it reduces portfolio risk, is required. At least annually, the Board of Trustees will review the investment policy and performance to determine any appropriate revisions.

Operating funds may be invested only in corporate bonds rated at a minimum A- by Standard and Poor's or A3 by Moody's Investors Service, Inc. (Moody's) that are of U.S. dollar denomination. Investments in asset-backed and mortgage-backed bonds are limited to those rated AAA/Aaa. Investments in commercial paper must be rated A1/P1 or better. The maximum percentage of investments in any one sector is limited to 100% for U.S. government and agency, 25% for asset-backed bonds, 40% for corporate notes and bonds, and 25% for mortgage-backed bonds.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

Deposits are comprised of demand deposit accounts with financial institutions. At both June 30, 2021 and 2020, cash on hand was \$4,000. At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the carrying amount of deposits was \$21,641,501 and \$19,585,705 and the bank balance was \$22,529,949 and \$20,692,394, respectively. The differences were caused primarily by items in transit.

The following is the fair value of deposits and investments at June 30, 2021:

		College		Component Unit Foundation	De	CCP velopment, LLC
Deposits:		College		oundation		
	ф (¢	1 450 054	¢	FF7 000
Demand deposits	\$ 2	21,645,501	\$	1,452,851	\$	557,226
Investments:						
U.S. Treasury obligations		4,273,802		-		-
U.S. government agency obligations		5,901,940		-		-
Corporate and foreign bonds		1,944,765		-		-
Intermediate fixed income mutual fund		5,574,146		5,256,080		-
Investment in subsidiary		, ,		, ,		
Equity mutual fund		-		10,255,861		-
Multi-strategy bond mutual fund		5,614,981		-		-
Money market mutual funds		26,844,772		1,927,110		-
Private real estate fund		-		4,099		-
	\$	71,799,907	\$	18,896,001	\$	557,226

The following is the fair value of deposits and investments at June 30, 2020:

	College	Component Unit Foundation
Denesite:	College	
Deposits: Demand deposits	\$ 19,585,705	\$ 1,622,503
Investments:		
U.S. Treasury obligations	5,181,943	-
U.S. government agency obligations	5,332,734	-
Corporate and foreign bonds	1,776,056	-
Intermediate fixed income mutual fund	5,531,337	4,488,182
Equity mutual fund	-	7,825,563
Multi-strategy bond mutual fund	5,449,926	-
Money market mutual funds	17,684,046	858,020
Private real estate fund		55,256
	\$ 60,541,747	\$ 14,849,524

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

In addition to the deposits and investments listed above, the College also has bond proceeds available for campus construction held by State Public School Building Authority, and the Bank of New York (the trustees), under the terms of various bond indentures. Bond proceeds available for campus construction are carried in the financial statements at fair value and consist of short-term investments and government securities. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, bond proceeds available for campus construction include the following:

	 2021	 2020	
Construction funds	\$ 9,779,803	\$ 19,978,506	

As of June 30, 2021, CCP Development, LLC (has debt proceeds available for CATC construction of \$22,394,729. See Note M for additional details. The College's investments are subject to various risks. Among these risks are custodial credit risk, credit risk, and interest rate risk. Each one of these risks is discussed in more detail below.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the College's deposits may not be returned to the College. The College does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Act 72 of 1971, as amended, allows banking institutions to satisfy the collateralization requirement by pooling eligible investments to cover total public funds on deposit in excess of federal insurance. Such pooled collateral is pledged with the financial institutions' trust departments.

At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the College's bank balance was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

	 2021	 2020
Uninsured and collateral held by pledging bank's trust department not in the College's name	\$ 21,641,501	\$ 19,585,705

The College participates in the Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Service (CDARS) for its certificates of deposit and Insured Cash Sweep (ICS). CDARS and ICS allow the College to access Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance on multi-million-dollar certificates of deposit and money market deposit accounts to earn rates that compare favorably to treasuries and money market mutual funds. Custodial credit risk has been eliminated for the College's certificates of deposit as a result of its participation in the CDARS program.

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The credit risk of a debt instrument is measured by nationally recognized statistical rating agencies such as Moody's.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

The multi-strategy bond mutual fund and the intermediate fixed income mutual fund are mutual funds managed by the Commonfund. The credit quality of the investments that comprise these funds are:

	June 30, 2021		
	Multi-Strategy Bond	Intermediate Fixed Income	
Government	15%	24%	
Agency AAA	24 12	23 21	
AA	3	4	
A	10	16	
BBB	20	10	
Below BBB	13	2	
Non-rated/other	3	-	
	100%	100%	
	June 30), 2020	
	Multi-Strategy	Intermediate	
	Bond	Fixed Income	
Government	11%	22%	
Agency	24	25	
AAA	11	22	
AA	4	5	
A	13	14	
BBB Below BBB	23 10	10 2	
Non-rated/other	4	-	
	100%	100%	

The credit quality of the fixed income investments in which the College directly invests, including U.S. Treasury obligations, U.S. government agency obligations and corporate and foreign bonds, is as follows:

	June 30, 2021	June 30, 2020
	Fixed Income Investments	Fixed Income Investments
Aaa	50%	54%
Aa	3	6
A	34	32
Ваа	13	8
	100%	100%

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of fixed income investments. The College's investment policy does not specifically address limitations in the maturities of investments. The weighted average maturities of the College's fixed income investments at June 30, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

	June 30, 2021	June 30, 2020
	Weighted-	Weighted-
	Average	Average
	Maturity	Maturity
	(Years)	(Years)
U.S. Treasury obligations	3.75	4.27
U.S. government agency obligations	4.02	3.79
Corporate and foreign bonds	4.52	4.92

The College categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by U.S. GAAP. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets, Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs, and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

The College has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2021:

Demand deposits, U.S. Treasury obligations, U.S. government agency obligations, and money market mutual funds of \$58,662,015 are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs).

Corporate and foreign bonds of \$1,944,765 are valued using a matrix pricing model (Level 2 inputs), while the intermediate fixed income mutual fund and the multi-strategy bond mutual fund totaling \$11,189,127 are valued at the NAV per share (or its equivalent) of the investments (Level 2 inputs).

The Foundation has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2021:

Demand deposits, equity mutual fund, and money market mutual funds of \$13,635,822 are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs).

The intermediate fixed income mutual fund of \$5,256,080 is valued at the NAV per share (or its equivalent) of the investments (Level 2 inputs).

The private real estate fund of \$4,099 is valued at the NAV per share (or its equivalent) of the investments (Level 3 inputs).

CCP Development, LLC has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2021:

Demand deposits \$557,226 are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs).

The College has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2020:

Demand deposits, U.S. Treasury obligations, U.S. government agency obligations, and money market mutual funds of \$47,784,428 are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs).

Corporate and foreign bonds of \$1,776,056 are valued using a matrix pricing model (Level 2 inputs), while the intermediate fixed income mutual fund and the multi-strategy bond mutual fund totaling \$10,981,263 are valued at the NAV per share (or its equivalent) of the investments (Level 2 inputs).



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

The Foundation has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2020:

Demand deposits, equity mutual fund, and money market mutual funds of \$10,306,086 are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs).

The intermediate fixed income mutual fund of \$4,488,182 is valued at the NAV per share (or its equivalent) of the investments (Level 2 inputs).

The private real estate fund of \$55,256 is valued at the NAV per share (or its equivalent) of the investments (Level 3 inputs).

The valuation method for investments measured at the NAV per share (or its equivalent) are presented in the following tables:

June 30,	2021 Ir	vestments l	Measured at NAV	(\$ in millions)	
			Unfunded	Redemption Frequency (If Currently	Redemption
	Fa	ir Value	Commitments	Eligible)	Notice Period
Intermediate fixed income mutual fund ⁽¹⁾ Multi-strategy bond mutual	\$	10.8	-	Monthly	30 days
fund ⁽²⁾		5.6	-	Weekly	7 days
Private real estate fund ⁽³⁾		0.1	-	N/A	N/A
Total investments measured at NAV	\$	16.5			

June 30, 2020 Investments Measured at NAV (\$ in millions)							
				Redemption			
			Unfunded	Frequency (If Currently	Redemption		
	F	air Value	Commitments	Eligible)	Notice Period		
Intermediate fixed income mutual fund ⁽¹⁾ Multi-strategy bond mutual	\$	10.0	-	Monthly	30 days		
fund ⁽²⁾		5.4	-	Weekly	7 days		
Private real estate fund ⁽³⁾		0.1	-	N/A	N/A		
Total investments measured at NAV	\$	15.5					

⁽¹⁾ Intermediate Fixed Income Mutual Fund. The investment objective of the Multi-Strategy Bond Fund is to offer an actively managed, multi-manager investment program that will provide broad exposure to global debt markets. The fund seeks to add value above the return of the broad U.S. bond market as measured by the Barclays Capital U.S. Aggregate Bond Index, net of fees, and to provide competitive returns relative to the Russell U.S. Core Plus Fixed Income Universe. The fund's risk characteristics will vary from those of the index due to its diversified exposures to sectors outside of the index, including below investment grade debt and international bond and currency markets. The fair values of the investments in this type have been determined using the NAV per share (or its equivalent) of the investments.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

- (2) Multi-Strategy Bond Mutual Fund. The investment objective of the Intermediate Term Fund is to produce a total return in excess of its benchmark, the Bank of America Merrill Lynch 1-3 Year Treasury Index, but attaches greater emphasis to its goal of generating a higher current yield than short-term money market investments in a manner that mitigates the chances of a negative total return over any 12-month period. The fair values of the investments in this type have been determined using the NAV per share (or its equivalent) of the investments.
- ⁽³⁾ Private Real Estate Fund. Equus Capital Partners' Fund X (Equus) seeks to acquire value-add properties across all major real estate segments throughout the U.S. It is a sole-acquirer that takes equity positions and does not partner with regional owner-operators through joint ventures that can be dilutive to equity upside profits. The fund aims to be fully diversified across all major property types and across all U.S. property markets. Equus runs a vertically integrated platform, from deal sourcing, through acquisition to portfolio management, property management, renovation, repositioning and exit. The fund includes moderate leverage on its acquisitions, with no debt recourse to the fund level. The fair values of the investments in this type have been determined using the NAV per share (or its equivalent) of the investments.

NOTE C - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

	 20	21		2020			
	 College		Component Unit Coundation		College		omponent Unit oundation
Tuition and fee receivables Grants receivable Other receivables Pledges receivable Receivable from Foundation	\$ 2,396,454 1,691,802 791,262 4,879,518	\$	25,892 - 58,891 - 84,783	\$	6,780,999 1,253,479 701,664 8,736,142	\$	207,067 109,942 317,009
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts	 (1,339,562)		(4,711)		(3,160,977)		(8,819)
Total	\$ 3,539,956	\$	80,072	\$	5,575,165	\$	308,190

Accounts receivable include the following at June 30, 2021 and 2020:

The College anticipates that all of its net accounts receivable will be collected within one year.

Accounts receivable, tuition and fees and other are reported as net realizable value. Accounts are written off when they are determined to be uncollectible based upon management's assessment of individual accounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts is estimated based on the College's historical losses and periodic review of individual accounts. The allowance was \$1,339,562 and \$3,160,977 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. All of the Foundation's pledges receivable are expected to be collected subsequent to June 30, 2021, generally on a five-year payment schedule.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE D - CAPITAL ASSETS

The College's capital assets consist of the following at June 30, 2021:

Capital assets not depreciated:	Balance July 1, 2020	Additions	Retirements and Adjustments	Balance June 30, 2021
Land and improvements	\$ 31,094,976	\$-	\$-	\$ 31,094,976
Construction in progress	7,194,834	10,120,356	(874,935)	16,440,255
Works of art	902,620			902,620
	39,192,430	10,120,356	(874,935)	48,437,851
Capital assets being depreciated: Buildings and				
improvements	243,381,379	1,420,441	-	244,801,820
Equipment and furniture	43,965,988	387,778	(46,013)	44,307,753
Library books	5,762,054	116,814	-	5,878,868
Microforms	1,669,832	-	-	1,669,832
Software	4,038,895	-	-	4,038,895
System software	6,911,878	-		6,911,878
Total before				
depreciation	305,730,026	1,925,033	(46,013)	307,609,046
	\$ 344,922,456	\$ 12,045,389	\$ (920,948)	\$ 356,046,897

Accumulated depreciation by asset categories is summarized as follows:

	Balance July 1, 2020	 Additions	 etirements and ljustments	Balance June 30, 2021
Buildings and improvements Equipment and furniture Library books Microforms Software System software	\$ 130,164,842 38,616,024 5,013,880 1,669,832 4,038,895 6,839,325	\$ 5,601,370 1,699,112 140,519 - 22,770	\$ (41,778) - - - -	\$ 135,766,212 40,273,358 5,154,399 1,669,832 4,038,895 6,862,095
Total before depreciation	\$ 186,342,798	\$ 7,463,771	\$ (41,778)	\$ 193,764,791
Net capital assets				\$ 162,282,106

CCP Development, LLC's capital assets consist of construction in progress in the amount of \$11,273,412 at June 30, 2021.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

The College's capital assets consist of the following at June 30, 2020:

Capital assets not depreciated:	Balance July 1, 2019	Additions	Retirements and Adjustments	Balance June 30, 2020
Land and improvements Construction in progress Works of art	\$ 31,094,976 1,013,521 787,708	\$- 6,295,754 114,912	\$- (114,441)	\$ 31,094,976 7,194,834 902,620
	32,896,205	6,410,666	(114,441)	39,192,430
Capital assets being depreciated: Buildings and				
improvements	243,056,366	325,013	-	243,381,379
Equipment and furniture	43,466,500	515,253	(15,765)	43,965,988
Library books	5,660,902	101,152	-	5,762,054
Microforms	1,669,832	-	-	1,669,832
Software	4,038,895	-	-	4,038,895
System software	6,911,878	-	-	6,911,878
Total before depreciation	304,804,373	941,418	(15,765)	305,730,026
	\$ 337,700,578	\$ 7,352,084	\$ (130,206)	\$ 344,922,456

Accumulated depreciation by asset categories is summarized as follows:

	Balance July 1, 2019	Additions		Retirements and Additions Adjustments		
Buildings and improvements	\$ 124,274,650	\$	5,890,191	\$	-	\$ 130,164,841
Equipment and furniture	36,897,941		1,732,805		(14,721)	38,616,025
Library books	4,885,042		128,838		-	5,013,880
Microforms	1,669,832		-		-	1,669,832
Software	4,038,895		-		-	4,038,895
System software	6,808,606		30,719		-	6,839,325
Total	\$ 178,574,966	\$	7,782,553	\$	(14,721)	\$ 186,342,798

Net capital assets

\$ 158,579,658



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE E - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consisted of the following at June 30, 2021:

	College		mponent Unit Foundation	mponent Unit CCP elopment LLC
Category:				
Vendors and others	\$ 10,360,34	2 \$	855,179	\$ 3,257,298
Accrued salaries	4,817,32	2	13,841	
Accrued benefits	2,229,85	4	-	-
Compensated absences	1,428,23	4	-	-
Retirement incentive payments	4,013,21	1	-	-
Accrued interest	222,63	9	-	
Total	\$ 23,071,60)2	869,020	\$ 3,257,298

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consisted of the following at June 30, 2020:

	College		omponent Unit oundation
Category:		ŭ	
Vendors and others	\$	8,234,349	\$ 803,216
Accrued salaries		3,784,561	35,764
Accrued benefits		2,053,313	-
Compensated absences		3,420,896	-
Retirement incentive payments		1,130,713	-
Payroll withholding taxes		514,427	-
Accrued interest		178,804	 -
Total	\$	19,317,063	\$ 838,980

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2021 was as follows:

	Beginning Balance July 1, 2020	Additions	Deductions	Total Ending Balance June 30, 2021	Current Portion
Long-term liabilities: Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Payable to	\$ 19,317,063	\$ 3,754,539	\$ -	\$ 23,071,602	\$ 21,293,765
government agencies Capital lease	269,549	423,268	(269,549)	423,268	423,268
obligation	918,263	-	(468,148)	450,115	378,638
Long-term debt Unamortized bond	70,057,284	14,580,000	(7,557,284)	77,080,000	7,600,000
premium Other post-	7,440,661	-	(728,918)	6,711,743	728,918
employment benefits	143,624,506	36,861,647		180,486,153	
	\$ 241,627,326	\$ 55,619,454	\$ (9,023,899)	\$ 288,222,881	\$ 30,424,589

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

Long term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:

	Ba	Beginning Ilance July 1, 2019	 Additions	 Deductions	Fotal Ending Balance une 30, 2020	Cu	urrent Portion
Long-term liabilities: Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	\$	18,953,625	\$ 544,222	\$ (180,784)	\$ 19,317,063	\$	17,762,425
Payable to government							
agencies		4,222,497	-	(3,952,948)	269,549		269,549
Capital lease							
obligation		1,391,712	-	(473,449)	918,263		468,149
Long-term debt Unamortized bond		77,298,101	-	(7,240,817)	70,057,284		7,557,284
premium		8,169,579	-	(728,918)	7,440,661		728,918
Other post-							
employment benefits		180,264,083	 1,610,577	 (38,250,154)	 143,624,506		-
	\$ 2	290,299,597	\$ 2,154,799	\$ (50,827,070)	\$ 241,627,326	\$	26,786,325

NOTE F - DEBT

The College's debt financing is primarily provided through Community College Revenue Bonds issued by the Hospitals and Higher Education Facilities Authority and the State Public School Building Authority.

Debt consisted of the following at June 30, 2021:

	Balance July 1, 2020	Additions	Principal Payments	Balance June 30, 2021	Current Portion
2015 Series 2018 Series 2019 Series 2020 Series	\$ 41,155,000 19,705,000 8,875,000	\$	\$ (4,595,000) (2,345,000) (295,000)	\$ 36,560,000 17,360,000 8,580,000 14,580,000	\$ 4,830,000 2,460,000 310,000
SPSBA Loan	322,284 \$ 70,057,284	<u>-</u> \$ 14,580,000	(322,284) \$ (7,557,284)	-	- \$ 7,600,000

Debt consisted of the following at June 30, 2020:

	Balance July 1, 2019	Additions	Principal Payments	Balance June 30, 2020	Current Portion
2015 Series 2018 Series 2019 Series SPSBA Loan	\$ 45,535,000 21,970,000 9,155,000 638,101	\$ - - - -	\$ (4,380,000) (2,265,000) (280,000) (315,817)	\$ 41,155,000 19,705,000 8,875,000 322,284	\$ 4,595,000 2,345,000 295,000 322,284
	\$ 77,298,101	\$-	\$ (7,240,817)	\$ 70,057,284	\$ 7,557,284

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

Future annual principal and interest payments at June 30, 2021 are as follows:

	Principal		Interest		Total	
June 30:						
2022	\$	7,600,000	\$	3,457,284	\$	11,057,284
2023		7,975,000		3,077,284		11,052,284
2024		6,240,000		2,678,534		8,918,534
2025		6,550,000		2,366,534		8,916,534
2026		6,000,000		2,039,034		8,039,034
2027		6,305,000		1,739,034		8,044,034
2028		7,565,000		1,423,784		8,988,784
2029		2,135,000		1,071,450		3,206,450
2030		2,220,000		990,192		3,210,192
2031		2,305,000		903,848		3,208,848
2032		2,395,000		812,343		3,207,343
2033		2,495,000		715,876		3,210,876
2034		2,595,000		614,002		3,209,002
2035		2,705,000		506,661		3,211,661
2036		2,805,000		405,660		3,210,660
2037		2,900,000		310,502		3,210,502
2038		3,000,000		212,120		3,212,120
2039		1,950,000		108,950		2,058,950
2040		1,340,000		45,413		1,385,413
	\$	77,080,000	\$	23,478,505	\$	100,558,505

2015 Series

Under a loan agreement dated September 10, 2015 between the Authority and the College, the College borrowed \$52,075,000 of 2015 Series Community College Revenue Bonds to advance refund a portion of the Authority's Community College Revenue Bonds (Community College of Philadelphia Project), Series of 2008 and additional 2015 Capital Projects. The 2015 Capital Projects consist of the following: (1) renovating the College's biology labs; (2) replacing certain escalators located in the College's West Building; and (3) various other renovations, repairs and capital improvements. All of the foregoing components of the 2015 Capital Projects will be used in connection with the College's operation of its community college buildings in furtherance of its educational mission. The 2015 Series Bonds are payable over $12\frac{1}{2}$ years at rates from 2.00% to 5.00%, with an average debt service payment of \$4,166,000. The unrefunded Series of 2008 were payable over three years, with an average debt service payment of \$2,415,000.

Remaining principal payments for the 2015 Series Bonds required by the loan agreement are as follows:

	 Principal
2022 2023	\$ 4,830,000 5,070,000
2024 2025	5,325,000 5,590,000
2026 2027-2039	4,995,000 10,750,000
	\$ 36,560,000



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

2018 Series

Under a loan agreement dated May 1, 2018 between the Authority and the College, the College borrowed \$24,155,000 of 2018 Series Community College Revenue Bonds to refund the outstanding Authority's Community College Revenue Bonds (Community College of Philadelphia Project), Series of 2017 and the additional 2018 Capital Projects. The 2018 Capital Projects consist of the renovation and improvements of the Library Learning Commons facility at the main campus. All of the foregoing components of the 2018 Capital Projects will be used in connection with the College's operation of its community college buildings in furtherance of its educational mission. The 2018 Series Bonds are payable over 20½ years at rates from 3.63% to 5.00%, with average debt service payments of \$3,291,851 through 2023 and \$1,148,381 from 2024 through 2038.

	Principa	
2022	\$ 2,460,0	000
2023	2,580,0	000
2024	575,0	000
2025	600,0	000
2026	630,0	000
2027-2038	10,515,0	000
	\$ 17,360,0	000

2019 Series

Under a loan agreement dated May 2019 between the Authority and the College, the College borrowed \$9,155,000 College Revenue Bonds (Community College of Philadelphia Project), Series A of 2019. The 2019 Capital Projects consist of (a) the development, construction, improvement, furnishing, equipping and outfitting of a new, approximately 75,000 square foot, building on land owned by the College in West Philadelphia, with a facility that will be used to house the College's Career and Advanced Technology Center, (b) the demolition of an existing building on such site, and (c) other miscellaneous capital improvements at such site including parking, landscaping and related improvements. All of the foregoing components of the 2019 Capital Projects will be used in connection with the College's operation of its community college buildings in furtherance of its educational mission. The 2019 Series A Bonds are payable over 20 years at rates from 3.00% to 5.00%, with average debt service payments of \$675,589 from 2020 through 2039.

Principal payments required by the loan agreement are as follows:

	 Principal
2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028-2039	\$ 310,000 325,000 340,000 360,000 375,000 395,000 6,475,000
	\$ 8,580,000



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

2020 Series

Under a loan agreement dated December 8, 2020 between the Authority and the College, the College borrowed \$14,580,000 College Revenue Bonds (Community College of Philadelphia Project), Series of 2020 (Federally Taxable). The 2020 Capital Project is completion funding for the 2019 Capital Project and consists of:

- (a) the development, construction, improvement, furnishing, equipping and outfitting of a new, approximately 75,000 square foot building on land owned by the College in West Philadelphia, which facility will be used to house the College's Career and Advanced Technology Center, and
- (b) other miscellaneous capital improvements at such site, including parking, landscaping and related improvements.

The 2020 Series Bonds were issued prior to the closing of the new market tax credit transaction which occurred on December 9, 2020. A portion of the proceeds of the 2020 Series Bonds was used as a leveraged loan to an investment fund which in turn, through three community development entities, lent such proceeds to CCP Development, LLC, which is 90% owned by the College and 10% owned by Career and Advanced Technology Center, Inc., a 501(c)(3) tax-exempt nonprofit corporation. CCP Development, LLC will use the proceeds and net new market tax credit equity received to construct the Career and Advanced Technology Center. The loan to CCP Development, LLC is secured by a first priority mortgage and lien on the Career and Advanced Technology Center. All of the foregoing components of the 2020 Capital Project will be used in conjunction with College's operation of its community college buildings in furtherance of its educational mission. Refer to Note M for additional details.

Remaining principal payments required by the loan agreement are as follows:

	 Principal
2028	\$ 950,000
2029	970,000
2030	995,000
2031	1,020,000
2032	1,045,000
2033	1,075,000
2034-2040	 8,525,000
	\$ 14,580,000

Operating Leases

The College leases certain equipment and property under operating lease arrangements that expire through 2025. Rental expense for operating leases was \$537,832 and \$513,212 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments required under operating leases are as follows:

2022 2023 2024 2025	\$ 433,970 310,274 272,845 278,311
	\$ 1,295,400

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

Capital Leases

The College leases certain equipment under capital lease arrangements that expire through 2023. These leases are recorded at the lower of cost or present value and amounted to \$450,115 and \$918,263 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Amortization charges of capital leases were \$1,050,961 and \$1,106,227 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under capital leases are as follows:

	Pi	rincipal	lr	nterest	 Total
2022 2023	\$	378,638 71,477	\$	14,031 1,121	\$ 392,669 72,598
	\$	450,115	\$	15,152	\$ 465,267

NOTE G - (PAYABLE TO) RECEIVABLE FROM GOVERNMENT AGENCIES

(Payable to) receivable from government agencies includes the following at June 30, 2021 and 2020:

		2021			2020			
	(Payable)		Receivable		(Payable)	F	Receivable
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania: Provision for potential audit findings and reimbursement						<u> </u>		
calculation	\$	(75,503)	\$	-	\$	(47,999)	\$	-
Grants and special projects		-		885,772		-		1,148,570
PHEAA for grants		(347,765)		-		(221,550)		-
		(423,268)		885,772		(269,549)		1,148,570
City of Philadelphia grants receivable Federal:		-		2,660,008		-		497,511
Financial aid programs		-		13,979		-		2,644
Grants and special projects		-		12,984,370		-		1,063,562
	<u>.</u>	<u> </u>		15,658,357		<u> </u>		1,563,717
Total	\$	(423,268)	\$	16,544,129	\$	(269,549)	\$	2,712,287

NOTE H - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Retirement benefits are provided for substantially all employees through payments to one of the board authorized retirement programs. Although the College does not offer participation in the Pennsylvania State Employees' Retirement System (SERS) or the Public School Employees' Retirement System (PSERS), it has grandfathered continued participation for those employees currently enrolled. The College has 12 employees participating in the SERS and 22 employees in the PSERS.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

Defined Benefit Plans

The PSERS and SERS are cost-sharing multiple employer-defined benefit plans and are administered by the Commonwealth as established under legislative authority. The financial statements for PSERS and SERS can be obtained from the following: Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Public School Employees' Retirement System, 5 North Fifth Street, P.O. Box 125, Harrisburg, PA 17108 0125; and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, State Employees' Retirement System, 30 North Third Street, P.O. Box 1147, Harrisburg, PA 17108 1147.

Benefits Provided

PSERS and SERS provide retirement, disability, and death benefits. For PSERS, retirement benefits are determined as 2.00% or 2.50% (depending on membership class), of the individual's final average salary multiplied by the number of years of credited service. After completion of five years of service, an individual's right to defined benefits is vested, and early retirement may be elected. Individuals are eligible for disability retirement benefits after completion of five years of credited service. Such disability benefits are generally equal to 2.00% to 2.50% (depending on membership class) of the member's final average salary multiplied by the number of years of credited service, but not less than one-third of such salary nor greater than the benefit the member would have had at normal retirement age. Death benefits are payable upon the death of an active member who has reached age 62 with at least one year of credited service. Such benefits are actuarially equivalent to the benefit that would have been effective if the member had retired on the day before death.

For SERS, retirement benefits are determined at 2.00% or 2.50% (depending on membership date) of the highest three-year average salary times the number of years of service. The vesting period is either 5 or 10 years (depending on membership date) of credited service.

Contributions

For PSERS, the contribution policy is set by Commonwealth statutes and requires contributions by active members, employers and the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. Funding percentages are determined by the plan in accordance with actuarial calculations and are based on covered payroll. Currently, for full time faculty, administrators and other staff, the College contributes 16.72% of all earnings as long as contributions are adequate to accumulate assets to pay retirement benefits when due. Employee contributions are 6.50% of all earnings for members prior to July 22, 1983 and 7.50% of all earnings for members after July 22, 1983.

For SERS, the contribution policy is set by Commonwealth statutes and requires contributions by active members, employers and the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. Funding percentages are determined by the plan in accordance with actuarial calculations and are based on covered payroll. Currently, for full-time faculty, administrators and other staff, the College contributes 23.94% and 34.63% of all earnings as long as contributions are adequate to accumulate assets to pay retirement benefits when due. Employee contributions are 6.25% of all earnings.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

At June 30, 2021, the College reported a liability of \$1,379,000 and \$2,831,037, within other postemployment benefits liability on the statements of net position, for its proportional share of the net pension liability for PSERS and SERS, respectively. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020 for PSERS and December 31, 2020 for SERS, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The College's proportion of the

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

net pension liability is based on a projection of the College's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating institutions, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2021, respectively, the College's proportion of PSERS and SERS was 0.0028% and 0.0155%.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the College recognized proportional pension expense for PSERS and SERS of \$87,000 and \$343,277 respectively, as provided by the plans' actuarial schedules. At June 30, 2021, the College reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

<u>PSERS</u>

	0	Deferred utflows of esources	I	Deferred nflows of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments	\$	4,000 61.000	\$	33,000 -
Changes in proportion and differences between College contributions and proportionate share of contributions				175,000
Total	\$	65,000	\$	208,000
<u>SERS</u>				
	Γ	Deferred		Deferred

		utflows of esources	Inflows of Resources	
Difference between expected and actual experience	\$	26,579	\$	3,175
Changes in assumptions		314,798		-
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension				
plan investments		-		362,218
Changes in proportion		167,724		85,683
Changes in proportion and differences between College				
contributions and proportionate share of contributions		-		190,308
Total	\$	509,101	\$	641,384

At June 30, 2020, the College reported a liability of \$1,403,000 and \$2,710,432, within other postemployment benefits liability on the statements of net position, for its proportional share of the net pension liability for PSERS and SERS, respectively. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019 for PSERS and December 31, 2019 for SERS, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The College's proportion of the net pension liability is based on a projection of the College's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating institutions, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2020 and December 31, 2020, respectively, the College's proportion of PSERS and SERS was 0.0030% and 0.0149%.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the College recognized proportional pension expense for PSERS and SERS of \$176,000 and \$441,641, respectively, as provided by the plans' actuarial schedules. At June 30, 2020, the College reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

<u>PSERS</u>

	Deferred Outflows of Resources		Deferred Inflows of Resources	
Difference between expected and actual experience Changes in assumptions	\$	8,000 13,000	\$	46,500
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments		-		4,000
Changes in proportion and differences between College contributions and proportionate share of contributions		26,000		159,500
Total	\$	47,000	\$	210,000
0500				

<u>SERS</u>

	Deferred Outflows of Resources		Deferred Inflows of Resources		
Difference between expected and actual experience	\$	33,795	\$	18,359	
Changes in assumptions		104,446		-	
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension					
plan investments		-		193,303	
Changes in proportion		236,770		128,584	
Changes in proportion and differences between College					
contributions and proportionate share of contributions		-		188,529	
	¢	275 011	¢	E00 77E	
Total	Φ	375,011	\$	528,775	

Actuarial Assumptions

The following methods and assumptions were used in the actuarial valuations for both years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, unless otherwise stated. These methods and assumptions were applied to all periods included in the measurement:

<u>PSERS</u>

Actuarial cost method	entry age normal level % of pay
Investment rate of return	7.25%, includes inflation at 2.75%
Salary increases	effective average of 5.00%, which reflects an allowance for inflation of 2.75%, real wage growth of 2.25% and merit of seniority increases.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

Mortality rates	Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Mortality Tables for Males and Females, adjusted to reflect PSERS' experience and projected using a modified version of the MP-2015 Mortality Improvement Scale.
<u>SERS</u>	
Actuarial cost method	entry age
Amortization method	straight-line amortization of investments over five years and amortization of assumption changes and noninvestment gains/losses over the average expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided benefits
Investment rate of return	7.00% and 7.125%, net of manager fees including inflation as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively
Projected salary increases	average of 4.60% with range of 3.30% - 6.95% including inflation
Inflation	2.50%
Mortality rate	projected RP-2000 Mortality Tables adjusted for actual plan experience and future improvement
Cost of living adjustments	none (ad hoc)

PSERS

The long-term expected real rate of return on pension investments is determined using a building-block method in which best estimates of ranges of expected future real rates of return are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of real rates of return are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class	Target Allocation	June 30, 2021 Long-Term Expected Rate of Return	June 30, 2020 Long-Term Expected Rate of Return
Global Public Equity	15.00%	5.20%	5.60%
Private Equity	15.00%	7.20%	0.00%
Fixed Income	36.00%	1.10%	1.90%
Commodities	8.00%	1.80%	2.70%
Absolute Return	10.00%	2.50%	3.40%
Infrastructure/MLPs	6.00%	5.70%	5.50%
Real Estate	10.00%	5.50%	4.10%
Risk Parity	8.00%	3.30%	4.10%
Cash	6.00%	-1.00%	0.30%
Financing (LIBOR)	-14.00%	-0.70%	0.70%
	100.00%		

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

<u>SERS</u>

Some of the methods and assumptions mentioned above are based on the 17th Investigation of Actuarial Experience, which was published in January 2011 and analyzed experience from 2006 through 2010. The long-term expected real rate of return on pension investments is determined using a building-block method in which best estimates of ranges of expected future real rates of return are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of real rates of return are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class	Total Allocation June 30, 2021	Total Allocation June 30, 2020	Long-Term Expected Rate of Return June 30, 2021	Long-Term Expected Rate of Return June 30, 2020
Private equity	14.00%	16.00%	6.25%	7.25%
Global Public equity	0.00%	48.00%	0.00%	5.15%
Private Credit	4.00%	0.00%	4.25%	0.00%
Real Estate	8.00%	12.00%	5.60%	5.26%
Multi-Strategy	0.00%	10.00%	0.00%	4.44%
US Equity	25.00%	0.00%	4.90%	0.00%
Int'l Developed Markets Equity	13.00%	0.00%	4.75%	0.00%
Emerging Markets Equity	4.00%	0.00%	5.00%	0.00%
Fixed Income - Core	22.00%	11.00%	1.50%	1.26%
Fixed Income - Opportunistic	4.00%	0.00%	3.00%	0.00%
Inflation Protection (TIPS)	4.00%	0.00%	1.50%	0.00%
Cash	2.00%	3.00%	0.25%	0.00%
Total	100.00%	100.00%		

For PSERS and SERS, the discount rate used to measure total pension liability was 7.25% and 7.125%, respectively. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at contractually required rates, actuarially determined. Based on these assumptions, the pension plans' fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Net Position Liability

For PSERS, the College's net pension liability at June 30, 2021 is \$1,379,000 using a 7.25% discount rate. The College's net pension liability would have been \$1,706,000 assuming a 1%-point decrease (6.25%) in the discount rate and would have been \$1,102,000 assuming a 1%-point increase (8.25%) in the discount rate.

For SERS, the College's net pension liability at June 30, 2021 is \$2,831,037 using a 7% discount rate. The College's net pension liability would have been \$3,751,215 assuming a 1%-point decrease (6%) in the discount rate and would have been \$2,042,136 assuming a 1%-point increase (8%) in the discount rate.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

Defined Contribution Plans

The College also sponsors one defined contribution plan, and as such, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings. Full-time faculty and administrative employees are eligible to participate from the date of employment, and clerical employees have a one year waiting period. Participation is mandatory for full-time faculty and administrative employees upon reaching the age of 30 or after two years of employment, whichever is the later date. Participation is mandatory for full-time faculty may participate after earning four seniority units, as defined in the collective bargaining agreement. College policy and collective bargaining agreements require that both the employee and the College contribute amounts, as set forth below, based on the employee's earnings.

The College's contributions for each employee (and interest allocated to the employee's accounts) are fully vested. Death benefits for value of accumulation are provided to the beneficiary of a participant who dies prior to retirement. Various payment options are available. The College has 1,056 employees participating in this program.

The payroll for employees covered by the three plans was \$58,696,317 and \$61,929,131, and the College's total payroll is \$74,041,097 and \$78,816,030 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Contributions made by the College for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 totaled \$5,367,470 and \$5,965,352, respectively, representing 9.14% and 9.63%, respectively, of covered payroll. College employees contributed \$4,414,574 and \$4,833,935, respectively, for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.

A summary of retirement benefits follows:

Type of Employee

Full-time faculty Visiting lecturers Part-time faculty Administrators and other staff Others Employee contribution

Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

Program Description

10% of base contract
5% of base contract
5% of all earnings
10% of base contract
10% of annual salary
5% of base salary

The College provides post-employment benefits other than pensions (OPEB) to eligible retirees of the College and their spouses. Health benefits include medical, prescription drug and dental coverage. Retirees and spouses are eligible to continue coverage for life as long as the retiree premium rates are paid. Life insurance benefit continues until age 65. Spouses are not covered. Life insurance benefit is determined as follows: Administrators = 2.5 times last annual salary, rounded up to next \$1,000; Faculty, Classified, Confidential = 2 times last annual salary, rounded up to next \$1,000; Faculty on Pre-Retirement Half-Time Workload Option = 4 times last annual salary, rounded up to next \$1,000. These healthcare benefits are funded by a single employer plan.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

Eligibility

Participants must be at least age 62 with 10 years of full-time service and have attained age plus service being greater than or equal to 77.

Funding Policy

Post-employment benefits other than pensions stem from the College's three collective bargaining agreements. For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the College paid \$243,357 and \$800,000, respectively, on behalf of the retirees and spouses. The College pays 100% of the premium for coverage for retirees until the end of the contract year in which the retiree attains age 65. Thereafter, the retiree pays 50% of the total premium, less the Medicare Part B premium. Pre-65 and post-65 retirees pay 50% of active medical benefits for pre-65 spouses. Post-65 retirees pay 50% of the premium for the coverage of post-65 spouses, less their Medicare Part B premium. Pre-65 retirees pay 0% of the premium for the coverage of post-65 spouses (the College pays 100% of their premium). Surviving spouses must pay 100% of the premium for coverage without getting reimbursed for Medicare Part B premium if over 65. Retirees on Medicare disability are given the Medicare Part B reimbursement regardless of age. The College pays 100% of the premium for retired post-65 part-time teachers and their spouses.

Employees/Retirees/Beneficiaries	Number of Participants as of July 1, 2020	Number of Participants as of July 1, 2019
Actives In-actives currently receiving benefit payments	497 210	833 594
Total	707	1,427

The following table provides a summary of the changes in the College's total OPEB liability for fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. The valuation dates were July 1, 2020 and 2019, and the measurement dates were June 30, 2021 and 2020.

Change in Total OPEB Liability (TOL)	July 1, 2020	July 1, 2019
TOL, beginning of year	\$ 139,511,074	\$ 175,548,288
Service cost	3,923,045	5,862,664
Interest	4,952,399	6,925,232
Change in benefit terms	-	(11,026,241)
Difference between expected and actual		
experience	-	(33,487,521)
Benefits paid	(3,874,038)	(4,928,779)
Changes in assumptions	31,763,636	617,431
TOL, end of year	\$ 176,276,116	\$ 139,511,074



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

The following summarizes the development of benefit for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020:

	2021		2020	
Service cost Interest Changes in assumptions Amortization of:	\$	3,923,045 4,952,399 7,940,909	\$	5,862,664 6,925,232 154,358
Total OPEB liability and assumption gain		(21,692,711)		(32,873,370)
Total benefit	<u>\$</u>	(4,876,358)	\$	(19,931,116)
Weighted-average assumptions to determine expense: Actual benefit payments Discount rate Expected return on assets Salary scale Current rate Ultimate rate/year reached	\$	3,874,038 2.21% N/A 3.00% 6.50% 4.50%/2041	\$	4,928,779 3.50% N/A 3.00% 6.50% 4.50%/2040

Deferred inflows of resources reported by the College at June 30, are as follows:

Date Amortization Base Set	Net Amount at June 30,	Amortization Period Remaining at June 30,
2020	\$ 74,716,112	4.00
2021	\$ 52,868,983	4.00

Deferred outflows of resources reported by the College at June 30, are as follows:

Date Amortization Base Set	Net Amount a June 30,	Amortization Period at Remaining at June 30,
2020 2021	\$ 463,07 \$ 24,131,44	

Deferred Inflows Projection

Amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in expense as follows:

Years Ending June 30:

2022	\$ 13,751,861
2023	11,271,748
2024	3,713,932

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

Actuarial Assumptions - 2021

<u>Mortality Table</u>: The Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Teachers mortality table projected generationally with Scale MP-2020 for faculty participants and Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans General mortality projected generationally with Scale MP-2020 for all other participants.

<u>Discount Rate</u>: 2.21% for determining June 30, 2021 disclosure and estimated 2022 expense; 3.50% for determining June 30, 2020 disclosure and estimated 2021 expense.

<u>Discount Rate Determination Method</u>: Under GASB 75, the discount rate for unfunded plans must be based on a yield or index rate for a 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. Rates were taken from the Bond Buyer 20-Bond Go index as of the measurement dates.

A one-percentage point change in the discount rate and assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following impact on the liability for post-employment benefits obligations at June 30, 2021:

Discount Rate Change	1% Decrease	1% Increase
Net OPEB Liability	\$ 280,254,743	\$ 150,807,751
Net OPEB Liability Healthcare Trend Rate	\$ 148,368,874	\$ 211,921,975

Actuarial Assumptions - 2020

<u>Mortality Table</u>: The Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Teachers mortality table projected generationally with Scale MP-2019 for faculty participants and Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans General mortality projected generationally with Scale MP-2019 for all other participants.

<u>Discount Rate</u>: 3.50% for determining June 30, 2020 disclosure and estimated 2021 expense; 3.87% for determining June 30, 2019 disclosure and estimated 2020 expense.

<u>Discount Rate Determination Method</u>: Under GASB 75, the discount rate for unfunded plans must be based on a yield or index rate for a 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. Rates were taken from the S&P municipal bond 20-year high grade rate index as of the measurement dates.

A one-percentage point change in the discount rate and assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following impact on the liability for post-employment benefits obligations at June 30, 2020:

Discount Rate Change	1% Decrease	1% Increase		
Net OPEB Liability	\$ 163,386,229	\$ 120,394,965		
Net OPEB Liability Healthcare Trend Rate	\$ 119,665,431	\$ 164,490,831		

Retirement Incentive Program

Effective September 1, 2014, the collective bargaining agreement provides for a retirement incentive for full-time employees at age 63, 64 or 65 with at least 20 years of service. The incentive payment is a percentage of final pay based on years of service. Forty employees will receive the incentive payment during fiscal years 2020-2021 and 2021-22. The present value of these payments is \$634,824 and \$958,145, respectively.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE I - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The use of grant monies received is subject to compliance audits by the disbursing governmental agency. The College believes it is in compliance with all significant grant requirements.

The nature of the educational industry is such that, from time to time, the College is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; alleged negligence; acts of discrimination; breach of contract; labor disputes; disagreements arising from the interpretation of laws or regulations; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. While some of these claims may be for substantial amounts, they are not unusual in the ordinary course of providing educational services. The College addresses these risks by purchasing commercial insurance. The College's retention of risk is limited to the deductibles on its insurance policies, which range from \$0 to \$150,000 per claim depending on the nature of the claim.

There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year. There have been no instances where a settlement amount exceeded the insurance coverage for each of the last three years. It is not expected that the resolution of any outstanding claims and litigation will have a material adverse effect on the accompanying financial statements.

The College's five-year Collective Bargaining Agreement with Faculty and Classified employee unions expires on August 31, 2022.

NOTE J - OPERATING EXPENSES

The College's and component unit Foundation's operating expenses, on a natural-classification basis, were comprised of the following for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020:

	20)21	2020					
		Component Unit		Component Unit				
	College	Foundation	College	Foundation				
Salaries Benefits	\$ 74,041,097 32,569,787	\$	\$ 77,819,073 34,789,946	\$				
Contracted services Supplies	9,247,101 5,564,083	59,286 82,627	9,247,101 4,466,810	91,285 62,181				
Depreciation	7,463,771	-	7,782,553	-				
Student aid Other post-retirement benefits	12,644,020 (8,754,336)	1,114,726 -	12,052,409 (24,589,650)	791,771 -				
Other	10,231,345	325,707	11,376,200	539,154				
Total	\$ 143,006,868	\$ 2,852,881	\$ 132,973,354	\$ 2,887,402				



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE K - CITY AND COMMONWEALTH APPROPRIATIONS

Appropriations from the Commonwealth and the City for the years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

	20)21	2020				
	Operations	Capital	Operations	Capital			
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania City of Philadelphia	\$ 32,388,574 34,450,833	\$ 5,812,134 7,177,918	\$ 32,408,016 29,846,548	\$ 5,819,210 6,212,659			
Total appropriations	\$ 66,839,407	\$ 12,990,052	\$ 62,254,564	\$ 12,031,869			

NOTE L - PASS-THROUGH GRANTS

The College distributed \$15,184,845 and \$21,245,772 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, for student loans through the U.S. Department of Education Federal Direct Loan Program. These distributions and related funding sources are not included as expenses and revenues, nor as cash disbursements and cash receipts in the accompanying financial statements.

NOTE M - NEW MARKET TAX CREDITS (CAREER AND ADVANCED TECHNOLOGY CENTER PROJECT)

On April 5, 2018, the Board of Trustees of the College approved a Resolution authorizing the West Regional Center Expansion. The West Regional Center Expansion is a capital project consisting of the development, construction, improvement, furnishing, equipping and fit out of a new building of approximately 75,000 square foot on land owned by the College in West Philadelphia. The building is being referred to as the Career and Advanced Technology Center (the CATC).

The construction of CATC will be supported by several mechanisms that include tax-exempt and taxable municipal bonds, Pennsylvania Department of Education capital funding, Redevelopment Assistance Capital Program (RACP) grants and New Market Tax Credits (NMTC).

On August 15, 2018, the Pennsylvania Department of Education approved the College's application for State assistance for the construction of community college facilities to expand the West Regional Center. The Department provided \$10,000,000 towards the capital expense of this Project in the form of debt service for the Series 2019 bonds, with the remainder to be financed by local sponsorship and other sources.

On May 8, 2019, the College successfully issued \$9,155,000 Series 2019 bonds with a premium of \$1,028,784 for total proceeds of \$10,183,784. The Series 2019 bonds were issued to assist with the construction of the CATC.

For additional funding of the CATC, the College utilized NMTC by which investors provide capital to community development entities (CDEs), and in exchange are awarded credits against their federal tax obligations. The NMTC program offers credits against federal income taxes over a 7-year period for Qualified Equity Investments in designated CDEs pursuant to Section 45D of the Internal Revenue Code in order to assist eligible businesses in making investments in certain low-income communities.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2021 and 2020

The CATC is located at 4750 Market Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, within a census tract that constitutes a "low-income community" and therefore qualified for the NMTC program. CCP Development, LLC (the LLC) was established as a qualified active low-income community business (QALICB) and serves as the leveraged loan lender for the NMTC transaction. The LLC was allocated \$25,945,000 of NMTC's from three separate CDEs which invested in the CATC.

As part of the NMTC transaction, an investment fund (the Fund) was established and funded through an investment of NMTC equity from an investor (Fund Investor). The Fund invested in the three CDEs which made loans to the LLC on December 9, 2020 in the aggregate amount of \$25,945,000.

Upon completion of the construction of the CATC building, the LLC will lease the building to the College. The College will be responsible for all operating and maintenance costs of the CATC upon completion, which is expected to be in 2022.

Interest on the three loans is paid by the LLC, commencing on February 5, 2021, at 1.836% per annum. The notes all mature on November 1, 2050 with interest only payments through October 31, 2028 and principal and interest payments from February 5, 2029 and continuing each annual payment date thereafter through and including August 5, 2050. The College provided a limited payment guaranty and completion guaranty to the CDEs to secure the loans.

The loan receivable and related interest receivable from the Fund to the College are recorded as a loan receivable within the statements of net position. The LLC recorded the three loan obligations owed to the CDEs as notes payable within the statements of net position. Because there is no right of offset between the loan receivable due to the College and the notes payable by the LLC, the loan receivable and notes payable are presented separately in the statements of net position for the year ending June 30, 2021.

The leveraged loans mature on August 1, 2046, and the Fund will pay the College interest only at a rate of 2.197% per annum for the outstanding balance commencing December 9, 2020. Amortization begins February 1, 2029 with the first amortizing payment due February 15, 2029. At the end of the 7-year tax credit investment period, and for the following six months (Put Option Period), between December 9, 2027 and May 9, 2028, the Fund Investor has an option, but not an obligation, to sell to the College the Fund Investor's interest in the Fund for a put exercise price of \$1,000. If the put is not exercised, then the College has the right and option, at any time during the 6-month period following the Put Option Period, to elect to purchase the Fund Investor's interest in the Fund, at an amount equal to the fair market value at the time of exercise.

Interest expense related to the outstanding notes payable for the year ended June 30, 2021 was \$271,216. Interest income related to the loan receivable for the year ended June 30, 2021 was \$245,078.

As of the date of issuance of the financial statements, the LLC has \$22,951,955 available for the completion of the CATC project.

NOTE N - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The College has evaluated subsequent events through September 28, 2021, noting no items which would require disclosure in the financial statements.



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

SCHEDULES OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS - LAST 10 YEARS* (UNAUDITED)

Years ended June 30,

(Amounts are in thousands)

	2021	 2020	 2019	 2018
Total OPEB Liability				
Service cost	\$ 3,923	\$ 5,863	\$ 6,425	\$ 10,624
Interest cost	4,952	6,925	5,696	6,234
Actual and expected experience difference	-	(33,487)	-	(47,379)
Changes in assumptions	31,764	617	-	(19,251)
Changes in benefit terms	-	(11,026)	(9,920)	-
Benefit payments	(3,874)	(4,929)	(4,449)	(4,934)
Net change in total OPEB liability	36,765	(36,037)	(2,248)	 (54,706)
Total OPEB liability - beginning	139,511	175,548	177,796	232,502
Total OPEB liability - ending (a)	\$ 176,276	\$ 139,511	\$ 175,548	\$ 177,796
Plan Fiduciary Net Position				
Contribution - employer	\$ 3,874	\$ 4,929	\$ 4,449	\$ 4,934
Benefit payments	(3,874)	(4,929)	(4,449)	(4,934)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position	-	-	-	 -
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning	-	-	-	-
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Net OPEB liability - ending (a)-(b)	\$ 176,276	\$ 139,511	\$ 175,548	\$ 177,796
Covered-employee payroll	55,279	53,434	51,546	54,241
Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll	319%	261%	341%	328%

*This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

See accompanying report of independent certified public accountants.

SCHEDULES OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY - LAST 10 YEARS* (UNAUDITED)

Years ended June 30,

PSERS	2021	2020	2019	2018	2017	2016	2015
College's proportion of the net pension liability	0.0028%	0.0030%	0.0034%	0.0034%	0.0035%	0.0032%	0.0026%
College's proportionate share of the net pension liability	\$1,379,000	\$1,403,000	\$1,632,000	\$1,679,000	\$1,734,000	\$1,386,000	\$1,030,000
College's covered employee payroll	\$ 244,157	\$ 407,745	\$ 456,911	\$ 455,779	\$ 454,763	\$ 413,104	\$ 335,800
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability	54.32%	55.66%	54.00%	51.84%	50.14%	54.36%	57.24%
SERS							
College's proportion of the net pension liability	0.0155%	0.0149%	0.0148%	0.0160%	0.0147%	0.0110%	0.0120%
College's proportionate share of the net pension liability	\$2,831,037	\$2,710,432	\$3,083,795	\$2,758,923	\$2,827,306	\$1,998,201	\$1,784,684
College's covered employee payroll	\$1,021,917	\$ 958,066	\$ 930,394	\$ 979,992	\$ 894,293	\$ 653,759	\$ 692,779
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability	67.00%	63.10%	56.40%	63.00%	57.80%	58.90%	64.80%

*This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

See accompanying report of independent certified public accountants.

SCHEDULES OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS - LAST 10 YEARS* (UNAUDITED)

Years ended June 30,

	2021	2020	2019	2018	2017	2016	2015
PSERS							
Contractually required contribution	\$ 175,000	\$ 134,000	\$ 144,000	\$ 130,000	\$ 111,000	\$ 83,000	\$ 52,000
Contribution in relation to the contractually required contribution	175,000	134,000	144,000	130,000	111,000	83,000	52,000
Contribution deficiency (excess)	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Covered employee payroll	\$ 244,157	\$ 407,745	\$ 456,911	\$ 455,779	\$ 454,763	\$ 413,104	\$ 335,800
Contributions as a % of covered employee payroll	71.6752%	32.8637%	31.5160%	28.5226%	24.4083%	20.0918%	15.4854%
SERS							
Contractually required contribution	\$ 352,495	\$ 334,491	\$ 323,944	\$ 325,667	\$ 301,735	\$ 202,576	\$ 98,248
Contribution in relation to the contractually required contribution	352,495	334,491	323,944	325,667	301,735	202,576	98,248
	\$ -	\$-	\$ -	\$-	\$ -	\$-	\$ -
Contribution deficiency (excess)							
Covered employee povroll	\$ 1,021,917	\$ 958,066	\$ 930,394	\$ 979,992	\$ 894,293	\$ 653,759	\$ 692,779
Covered employee payroll	34.4935%	34.9131%	34.8179%	33.2316%	33.7401%	30.9863%	14.1817%
Contributions as a % of covered employee payroll							

*This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

See accompanying report of independent certified public accountants.


OTHER INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

STATISTICAL SECTION - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES BY SOURCE (UNAUDITED)

Year ended June 30,

(Amounts expressed in thousands)

	2021	2020	2019	2018	2017	2016	2015	2014	2013	2012
Revenues:										
Student tuition and fees (net of scholarship allowances)	\$ 28,424	\$ 30,536	\$ 32,753	\$ 33,234	\$ 32,992	\$ 31,643	\$ 31,973	\$ 35,338	\$ 32,003	\$ 30,181
Sales of auxiliary enterprises	φ 20,424 408	\$ 30,330 1,413	φ 32,733 1,599	³ 33,234 1,523	φ 32,992 1,737	3 31,043 1,740	ر ۱,786	\$ 33,338 1,671	\$ 32,003 1,776	φ 30,181 1,827
Other operating revenues	23	38	42	46	62	87	196	166	158	168
Total operating revenues	28,855	31,987	34,394	34,803	34,791	33,470	33,955	37,175	33,937	32,176
City appropriations	34,451	29,847	25,549	23,310	24,189	23,272	21,271	18,346	18,064	17,652
State appropriations	32,389	32,408	31,820	30,892	30,868	30,128	28,632	28,179	28,240	28,229
Federal grants and contracts	65,187	52,337	46,098	49,026	48,888	53,551	57,871	58,796	58,715	56,839
State grants and contracts	6,061	6,621	5,989	7,953	8,126	8,278	7,343	6,591	7,191	6,495
Gifts from the Community College of										
Philadelphia Foundation	12	95	160	242	835	225	141	100	2,809	-
Nongovernmental grants and contracts	2,884	2,522	2,115	1,582	1,528	1,456	1,521	1,704	1,119	1,014
Net investment income	451	1,691	1,577	36	75	815	365	695	333	1,098
Other nonoperating revenue	509	578	410	399	378	2,579	1,087	324	379	540
Total nonoperating revenues	141,944	126,099	113,718	113,440	114,887	120,304	118,231	114,735	116,850	111,867
Capital appropriations	12,990	12,032	11,797	12,450	11,050	12,354	10,859	13,969	13,730	14,084
Total revenues	\$ 183,789	\$ 170,118	\$ 159,909	\$160,693	\$160,728	\$166,128	\$163,045	\$165,879	\$164,517	\$158,127

STATISTICAL SECTION - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES BY SOURCE (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

Year ended June 30,

(Amounts expressed in percentages)

	2021	2020	2019	2018	2017	2016	2015	2014	2013	2012
Revenues:										
Student tuition and fees (net of										
scholarship allowances)	15.47%	17.95%	20.48%	20.68%	20.53%	19.05%	19.61%	21.30%	19.45%	19.09%
Sales of auxiliary enterprises	0.22	0.83	1.00	0.95	1.08	1.05	1.10	1.01	1.08	1.16
Other operating revenues	0.01	0.02	0.03	0.03	0.04	0.05	0.12	0.10	0.10	0.11
Total operating revenues	15.70	18.80	21.51	21.66	21.65	20.15	20.83	22.41	20.63	20.36
City appropriations	18.74	17.54	15.98	14.51	15.04	14.01	13.05	11.06	10.98	11.16
State appropriations	17.62	19.05	19.90	19.22	19.21	18.14	17.56	16.99	17.17	17.85
Federal grants and contracts	35.47	30.77	28.83	30.51	30.42	32.23	35.49	35.45	35.69	35.95
State grants and contracts	3.30	3.89	3.75	4.95	5.06	4.98	4.50	3.97	4.37	4.11
Gifts from the Community College										
of Philadelphia Foundation	0.01	0.06	0.10	0.15	0.52	0.14	0.09	0.06	1.7	-
Nongovernmental grants and contracts	1.57	1.48	1.32	0.98	0.95	0.88	0.93	1.02	0.68	0.64
Net investment income	0.25	0.99	0.99	0.02	0.05	0.49	0.22	0.42	0.20	0.69
Other nonoperating revenue	0.28	0.34	0.25	0.25	0.24	1.55	0.67	0.20	0.23	0.33
Total nonoperating revenues	77.24	74.12	71.12	70.59	71.49	72.42	72.51	69.17	71.02	70.73
Capital appropriations	7.06	7.08	7.37	7.75	6.86	7.43	6.66	8.42	8.35	8.91
Total revenues	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%

STATISTICAL SECTION - SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES BY USE (UNAUDITED)

Year ended June 30,

(Amounts expressed in thousands)

	2021	2020	2019	2018	2017	2016	2015	2014	2013	2012
Expenses:										
Salaries	\$ 74,041	\$ 77,819	\$ 77,462	\$ 76,986	\$ 78,629	\$ 77,931	\$ 77,161	\$ 75,438	\$ 76,015	\$ 76,796
Benefits	32,570	34,790	34,979	36,259	36,417	36,978	36,140	35,885	34,247	32,062
Contracted services	9,247	9,276	8,045	7,859	6,512	6,458	8,331	9,697	11,373	6,057
Supplies	5,564	4,467	3,060	3,549	3,376	3,857	3,073	3,232	3,636	2,760
Depreciation	7,464	7,783	7,939	8,133	8,204	8,861	9,698	10,490	10,423	9,764
Student aid	12,644	12,052	6,250	7,213	8,770	8,739	8,211	10,459	8,328	10,015
Other	10,231	11,376	13,375	12,092	12,959	13,167	12,815	12,314	11,468	11,895
GASB 75 (Other post-employment										
benefits) accrual	(8,754) (24,590)	(5,426)	12,309	11,703	11,686	8,016	8,641	8,530	7,611
Total operating expenses	143,007	132,973	145,684	164,400	166,570	167,677	163,445	166,156	164,020	156,960
Interest on capital asset-related debt										
service	3,882	3,604	3,602	3,413	3,263	3,315	4,225	4,258	4,689	3,927
Total nonoperating expenses	3,882	3,604	3,602	3,413	3,263	3,315	4,225	4,258	4,689	3,927
Total expenses	\$ 146,889	\$ 136,577	\$ 149,286	\$ 167,813	\$ 169,833	\$ 170,992	\$ 167,670	\$ 170,414	\$ 168,709	\$ 160,887

STATISTICAL SECTION - SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES BY USE (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

Year ended June 30,

(Amounts expressed in percentages)

	2021	2020	2019	2018	2017	2016	2015	2014	2013	2012
Expenses:										
Salaries	50.41%	56.98%	51.89%	45.88%	46.30%	45.57%	46.02%	44.27%	45.06%	47.73%
Benefits	22.17	25.47	23.43	21.61	21.44	21.63	21.55	21.04	20.28	19.93
Contracted services	6.30	6.79	5.39	4.68	3.83	3.78	4.97	5.69	6.74	3.77
Supplies	3.79	3.27	2.05	2.11	1.99	2.26	1.83	1.90	2.16	1.72
Depreciation	5.08	5.70	5.32	4.85	4.83	5.18	5.78	6.16	6.18	6.07
Student aid	8.61	8.82	4.19	4.30	5.16	5.11	4.90	6.14	4.94	6.22
Other	6.97	8.33	8.96	7.21	7.63	7.70	7.64	7.23	6.80	7.39
GASB 75 (Other post-employment										
benefits) accrual	(5.96)	(18.00)	(3.63)	7.33	6.89	6.83	4.78	5.07	5.06	4.73
Total operating expenses	97.37	97.36	97.60	97.97	98.07	98.06	97.47	97.50	97.22	97.56
Interest on capital asset-related										
debt service	2.63	2.64	2.40	2.03	1.93	1.94	2.53	2.50	2.78	2.44
Total nonoperating expenses	2.63	2.64	2.40	2.03	1.93	1.94	2.53	2.50	2.78	2.44
Total expenses	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%

STATISTICAL SECTION - SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES BY FUNCTION (UNAUDITED)

Year ended June 30,

(Amounts expressed in thousands)

	2021	2020	2019	2018	2017	2016	2015	2014	2013	2012
Expenses by function:										
Instruction	\$ 50,333	\$ 49,333	\$ 56,715	\$ 64,578	\$ 65,509	\$ 66,018	\$ 65,046	\$ 66,210	\$ 66,436	\$ 62,162
Public service	38	104	97	145	124	183	86	109	156	63
Academic support	14,763	13,749	16,405	19,182	18,880	18,824	18,372	17,492	17,247	17,723
Student services	18,891	16,673	20,529	24,212	24,405	25,142	23,494	22,811	21,913	21,075
Institutional support	28,428	19,176	22,640	25,111	24,854	24,429	24,371	25,229	26,216	23,281
Operation and maintenance of plant	10,105	13,445	14,424	15,093	15,013	14,913	13,336	12,586	12,742	12,244
Depreciation	7,464	7,783	7,939	8,133	8,204	8,861	9,698	10,490	10,423	9,764
Student aid	12,644	12,052	6,250	7,213	8,770	8,739	8,211	10,459	8,328	10,015
Auxiliary enterprises	342	658	685	733	811	567	831	770	559	633
Interest on capital debt	3,882	3,604	3,602	3,413	3,263	3,315	4,225	4,258	4,689	3,927
Total expenses by function	\$ 146,890	\$ 136,577	\$ 149,286	\$ 167,813	\$ 169,833	\$ 170,991	\$ 167,670	\$ 170,414	\$ 168,709	\$ 160,887

(Amounts expressed in percentages)

	2021	2020	2019	2018	2017	2016	2015	2014	2013	2012
Expenses by function:										
Instruction	34.27%	36.12%	37.99%	38.48%	38.57%	38.61%	38.79%	38.85%	39.38%	38.64%
Public service	0.03	0.08	0.06	0.09	0.07	0.11	0.05	0.06	0.09	0.04
Academic support	10.05	10.07	10.99	11.43	11.12	11.01	10.96	10.26	10.22	11.02
Student services	12.86	12.21	13.75	14.43	14.37	14.70	14.01	13.39	12.99	13.10
Institutional support	19.35	14.04	15.17	14.96	14.63	14.29	14.54	14.80	15.54	14.47
Operation and maintenance of plant	6.88	9.84	9.66	8.99	8.84	8.72	7.95	7.39	7.55	7.61
Depreciation	5.08	5.70	5.32	4.85	4.83	5.18	5.78	6.16	6.18	6.07
Student aid	8.61	8.82	4.19	4.30	5.16	5.11	4.90	6.14	4.94	6.22
Auxiliary enterprises	0.23	0.48	0.46	0.44	0.48	0.33	0.50	0.45	0.33	0.39
Interest on capital debt	2.64	2.64	2.41	2.03	1.92	1.94	2.52	2.50	2.78	2.44
Total expenses by function	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%

STATISTICAL SECTION - SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION (UNAUDITED)

Year ended June 30,

(Amounts expressed in thousands)

	2021	2020	2019	2018	2017	2016	2015	2014	2013	2012
Total revenues (from schedule of revenues by source less capital appropriations) Total operating expenses (from schedule	\$ 170,798	\$ 158,085	\$ 148,112	\$ 148,423	\$ 149,678	\$ 153,776	\$ 152,186	\$ 151,910	\$ 150,786	\$ 144,042
of expenses by use)	146,889	136,578	149,286	167,813	169,833	170,992	167,670	170,414	168,709	160,887
Total changes in net position	23,909	21,507	(1,174)	(19,390)	(20,155)	(17,216)	(15,484)	(18,504)	(17,923)	(16,845)
Net position, beginning	(65,267)	(98,807)	(109,429)	51,951	61,057	65,919	72,538	77,072	81,265	85,903
Net position, ending	\$ (41,358)	\$ (77,300)	\$ (110,603)	\$ 32,561	\$ 40,902	\$ 48,703	\$ 57,054	\$ 58,568	\$ 63,342	\$ 69,058
Net investment in capital assets	\$116,734	\$104,726	\$ 103,869	\$ 102,005	\$ 99,772	\$ 98,776	\$ 96,979	\$ 93,771	\$ 89,660	\$ 86,331
Restricted - expendable Unrestricted	5,727 (150,829)	5,439 (175,432)	5,284 (207,960)	5,101 (216,535)	4,939 (52,760)	4,912 (42,631)	4,742 (35,802)	4,742 (25,975)	2,740 (15,328)	1,364 (4,553)
Total net position	\$ (28,368)	\$ (65,267)	\$ (98,807)	\$ (109,429)	\$ 51,951	\$ 61,057	\$ 65,919	\$ 72,538	\$ 77,072	\$ 83,142

Source: Audited financial statements.

STATISTICAL SECTION - FISCAL YEAR ENROLLMENT AND DEGREE STATISTICS (UNAUDITED)

Year ended June 30,

	2021	2020	2019	2018	2017	2016	2015	2014	2013	2012
Enrollments and student demographics:										
Credit FTE	10,608	12,331	12,740	13,596	13,659	14,481	14,851	15,051	15,116	15,769
Unduplicated Credit Headcount	19,266	22,160	23,139	24,443	25,571	26,837	27,942	28,096	28,264	29,094
Percentage - Men	31.2%	34.7%	36.3%	36.3%	37.1%	37.8%	37.7%	37.7%	36.9%	35.5%
Percentage - Women	68.4	65.3	63.7	63.7	62.9	62.2	62.3	62.3	63.1	64.5
Percentage - Black	41.7	41.9	43.1	48.1	48.8	49.4	50.7	50.2	49.7	49.9
Percentage - White	24.4	22.9	23.2	23.5	24.0	23.8	23.9	24.3	25.1	24.6
Percentage - Asian	10.4	11.8	11.4	9.8	9.4	8.9	8.4	8.2	7.7	7.3
Percentage - Hispanic	15.7	15.9	14.9	14.0	13.0	12.8	11.8	11.4	10.6	4.9
Percentage - American Indian/other	4.0	3.9	4.0	0.3	0.3	0.3	0.4	0.4	0.4	0.5
Percentage - Unknown	3.8	3.6	3.4	4.3	4.5	4.8	4.8	5.6	6.5	12.9
Degrees awarded:										
Associate	1,954	1,761	1,770	1,731	1,794	1,880	1,916	1,857	1,712	1,828
Certificate	178	225	331	495	471	475	446	338	167	180

Source: Department of Institutional Research.

STATISTICAL SECTION - FACULTY AND STAFF STATISTICS (UNAUDITED)

For Fall Term in Year

	2021	2020	2019	2018	2017	2016	2015	2014	2013	2012
Faculty:										
Part-time	297	452	567	543	548	676	635	643	734	757
Full-time	310	336	438	443	467	400	395	407	412	418
Percentage tenured	77.7%	77.7%	67.1%	65.2%	61.8%	74.0%	81.7%	79.9%	80.6%	83.0%
Administrative and support staff:										
Part-time	55	82	76	40	38	18	11	12	20	22
Full-time	503	506	474	470	466	445	453	441	447	472
Total employees:										
Part-time	352	534	643	583	586	694	646	655	754	779
Full-time	813	842	912	913	933	845	848	848	859	890
Students per full-time staff:										
Number credit students	13,672	15,996	16,672	17,296	18,126	18,099	19,119	19,066	18,692	19,751
Faculty	44	48	38	39	39	45	47	47	46	47
Administrative and support staff	27	32	35	37	39	41	42	43	40	42
Autimistrative and support stall	21	52		57		41	42	45	42	42
Average annual faculty salary	\$ 66,597	\$ 65,300	\$ 75,020	\$ 67,883	\$ 69,196	\$ 63,789	\$ 65,212	\$ 64,059	\$ 66,137	\$ 66,236

Source: Institutional Human Resource Records.

GROSS SQUARE FEET OF COLLEGE BUILDINGS (UNAUDITED)

	2021	2020	2019	2018	2017	2016	2015	2014	2013	2012
Main Campus - Buildings	911,051	911,051	911,051	911,051	911,051	911,051	911,051	900,613	900,613	852,445
Main Campus - 17 Street Garage	230,360	230,360	230,360	230,360	230,360	230,360	230,360	230,360	230,660	230,660
Main Campus Recreation Deck	62,600	62,600	62,600	62,600	62,600	62,600	62,600	62,600	62,600	62,600
Main Campus - CBI Garage	74,902	74,902	74,902	74,902	74,902	74,902	74,902	74,902	74,902	74,902
Main Campus - 434 North 15th Street	88,500	88,500	88,500	88,500	88,500	88,500	88,500	88,500	88,500	-
Northeast Regional Center	109,075	109,075	109,075	109,075	109,075	109,075	109,075	109,075	109,075	109,075
West Regional Center	39,394	39,394	39,394	39,394	39,394	39,394	39,394	39,394	32,090	32,090
Northwest Regional Center	90,000	90,000	90,000	90,000	90,000	90,000	90,000	90,000	90,000	90,000
Total gross square feet	1,605,882	1,605,882	1,605,882	1,605,882	1,605,882	1,605,882	1,605,882	1,595,444	1,588,440	1,451,772

Source: Institutional Physical Plant Records.

Community College of Philadelphia (A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS (UNAUDITED)

City of Philadelphia Last Ten Calendar Years

	Population as of June 30	Average Annual Unemployment Rate
Year:	<u></u>	
2011 – 12	1,536,471	10.8
2012 – 13	1,547,607	10.5
2013 – 14	1,553,165	7.8
2014 – 15	1,560,297	7.4
2015 – 16	1,567,442	6.9
2016 – 17	1,567,872	5.9
2017 – 18	1,580,863	5.7
2018 – 19	1,584,138	5.1
2019 – 20	1,584,064	7.8
2010 – 21	1,587,232	9.4

Sources: United States Census Bureau and Bureau of Labor Statistics

Community College of Philadelphia (A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

COMPONENT UNIT SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION (UNAUDITED)

Year ended June 30, 2021

(In thousands)

	nunity College hia Foundation	CCP Development, LLC		
Cash on deposit and on hand Investments Accounts receivable Allowance for doubtful accounts Due from other governments Restricted assets Other assets Property, plant and equipment	\$ 23,098 72,621 24,497 (1,344) 16,544 3,068 2,004 162,282	\$	557 - - 22,395 - 11,273	
Total assets	\$ 302,770	\$	34,225	
Deferred outflows of resources: Deferred outflows	29,243		-	
Liabilities: Vouchers and accounts payable Salaries and wages payable Accrued expenses Funds held in escrow Due to other governments Deferred revenue Current portion of long-term obligations Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations Notes payable Other post-employment benefits (GASB 75)	\$ 17,332 4,831 1,778 280 423 6,284 7,979 69,551 - 180,486	\$	3,257 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	
Total liabilities	\$ 288,944	\$	29,202	
Deferred inflows of resources: Deferred inflows	53,725		-	
Net position: Net investment in capital assets Restricted for: Capital projects Tuition stabilization and scholarships Unrestricted (deficit)	\$ 116,734 5,929 15,575 (148,894)	\$	- 5,023 - -	
Total net position	\$ (10,656)	\$	5,023	



COMPONENT UNIT SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES (UNAUDITED)

Year ended June 30, 2021

(In thousands)

		Program Revenues						Expense Changes et Position		
	Expenses			Charge for Services		Gr	perating ants and <u>tribution</u> s	Capital Grants and Contributions	Education Activities	
Community college services	\$ 149,741	\$	28,831	\$	75,524	\$- General revenues: Grants and contributions* Interest and investment earnings Miscellaneous	\$	45,386 79,829 3,618 2,481		
						Total general revenues		85,928		
						Change in net assets		40,542		
						Net position - beginning		(51,198)		
						Net position - ending	\$	(10,656)		

* Includes Commonwealth appropriations of \$38,200,708 and City of Philadelphia appropriations of \$41,628,751.

Community College of Philadelphia (A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

COMPONENT UNIT CAPITAL ASSET FORMAT (UNAUDITED)

Year ended June 30, 2021

	Beginning Balance	Increases	Decreases	Ending Balance
Business-type activities:				
Capital assets not being depreciated:				
Land	\$ 31,094,976	\$-	\$ -	\$ 31,094,976
Works of art	902,620	-	-	902,620
Construction in process	7,194,834	21,393,768	(874,935)	27,713,667
Total capital assets not being depreciated	39,192,430	21,393,768	(874,935)	59,711,263
Capital assets being depreciated:				
Buildings	243,182,148	1,420,441	-	244,602,589
Other improvements	18,382,659	116,814	-	18,499,473
Equipment	42,613,136	372,779	(46,013)	42,939,902
Furniture	1,352,851	14,999	-	1,367,850
Leasehold improvements	199,232			199,232
Total capital assets being depreciated	305,730,026	1,925,033	(46,013)	307,609,046
Less accumulated depreciation for:				
Buildings	129,981,146	5,599,064	-	135,580,210
Other improvements	17,561,933	163,289	-	17,725,222
Equipment	37,481,798	1,656,173	(41,778)	39,096,193
Furniture	1,134,226	42,939	-	1,177,165
Leasehold improvements	183,695	2,306	-	186,001
·				
Total accumulated depreciation	186,342,798	7,463,771	(41,778)	193,764,791
Total capital assets being depreciated, net	119,387,228	(5,538,738)	(4,235)	113,844,255
Business-type activities capital assets, net	\$158,579,658	\$ 15,855,030	\$ (879,170)	\$173,555,518



GRANT THORNTON LLP

2001 Market St., Suite 700 Philadelphia, PA 19103-7065

D +1 215 561 4200
F +1 215 561 1066

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Trustees Community College of Philadelphia (A Component Unity of the City of Philadelphia)

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities and discretely presented component units of Community College of Philadelphia (the "College") as of and for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the College's basic financial statements, and our report thereon dated September 28, 2021 expressed unmodified opinions on these financial statements that collectively comprise the College's basic financial statements. We have not performed any procedures with respect to the audited financial statements subsequent to September 28, 2021.

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. *Code of Federal Regulations* Part 200, *Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards*, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditional procedures. These additional procedures included comparing and reconciling the information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania Date

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year ended June 30, 2021

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor Program or Cluster Title	Assistance Listing Number	Provided to Subrecipients	Pass-Through Grantor Number	Expenditures
U.S. Department of Education				
Student Financial Assistance Cluster		•		* • • • • • • • •
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants (FSEOG) Federal Work-Study Program (FWS)	84.007 84.033	\$-	-	\$ 902,608 201,968
Federal Pell Grant Program (PELL)	84.063	-	-	30.398.405
Federal Direct Student Loans (Direct Loan)	84.268	-	-	15,184,845
Total Student Financial Assistance Cluster				46,687,826
TRIO Cluster				
TRIO Student Support Services	84.042A	-	-	294,666
TRIO Upward Bound	84.047A	-	-	348,211
Total TRIO Cluster				642,877
Strengthening Minority-Serving Institutions	84.382A	-	-	463,758
Child Care Access Means Parents in School	84.335A	-	-	229,245
Strengthening Institutions Program	84.031A	-	-	57,000
COVID-19 Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund (HEERF) Student Aid Portion	84.425E	-	-	6,720,375
COVID-19 HEERF - Institutional Portion	84.425F	-	-	23,262,560
COVID-19 HEERF - Minority Serving Institutions (MSI's)	84.425L	-	-	2,375,972
Passed-through Pennsylvania Department of Education				
Governor's Emergency Education Relief Fund	84.425C	-	4100087524	1,282,155
Total Education Stabilization Fund				33,641,062
Passed-through Pennsylvania Department of Education				
Career and Technical Education – Basic Grants to States	84.048A	-	FA-381-21-0011	2,396,645
Total U.S. Department of Education				84,118,413
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services				
Passed-through the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Department of Human Services				
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)	93.558	-	4100081210	141,107
Passed-through the Philadelphia Hospital and Health Care District 1199C National Workforce Diversity Pipeline Program	02 127			1 076
	93.137	-	CPIMP151091-01-00	1,276
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services				142,383
U.S. Department of Labor	47.000			7 004
H1-B Job Training Grants	17.268	-	-	7,261
Total U.S. Department of Labor				7,261
Research and Development Cluster				
National Science Foundation Passed-through The Trustees of the University of Pennsylvania				
NNCI: Mid-Atlantic Nanotechnology Hub (MANTH)	47.041	ECCS-1542153	ECCS-2025608	35,405
Passed-through Drexel University	47.041	L000-1042100	LCC3-2023000	33,403
Education and Human Resources	47.076	HRD-1408052	HRD-2008197	24,321
Passed-through Saint Joseph's University				,
Education and Human Resources (Noyce Scholars Program)	47.076	1758353	1758353	10,601
Total Research and Development Cluster				70,327
U.S. Department of Agriculture				
Passed-through DHS - Bureau of Program Support				
State Administrative Matching Grants for the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance	40			
Program	10.561	4100081210	4100081210	220,192
Total expenditures of federal awards				\$ 84,558,576



NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

June 30, 2021

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "Schedule") summarizes the expenditures of the College under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2021. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal awards presents only a selected portion of the operations of the College; it is not intended to, and does not, present the financial position, changes in net position, and cash flows of the College.

For the purposes of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, federal awards include all grants, contracts and similar agreements entered into directly between the College and agencies and departments of the federal government and all sub-awards to the College by non-federal organizations pursuant to federal grants, contracts and similar agreements. Federal awards are included in contracts and other exchange transactions on the accompanying statement of net position.

NOTE B - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the accrual basis of accounting. The information in the schedule is presented in accordance with *Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards.* Therefore, some amounts presented in the schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

NOTE C - FEDERAL STUDENT LOAN PROGRAM

Federally guaranteed loans issued to students of the College during the year ended June 30, 2021 totaled \$15,184,845. This amount has been included in the Schedule. The College is responsible only for the performance of certain administrative duties with respect to federally guaranteed student loan programs, and accordingly, these loans are not included in its financial statements.

NOTE D - ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS

The College's expenditures include administrative expenses of \$44,200 for Federal Pell Grants, \$10,098 in Federal Work Study, and \$45,130 for Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants.

NOTE E - INDIRECT COST RATE

Indirect costs allocated to federal awards were based on predetermined rates negotiated with the College's cognizant federal agency. The College has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.



GRANT THORNTON LLP

2001 Market St., Suite 700 Philadelphia, PA 19103-7065

- **D** +1 215 561 4200
- F +1 215 561 1066

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS REQUIRED BY *GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS*

Board of Trustees Community College of Philadelphia (A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities and the discretely presented component units, of Community College of Philadelphia (the "College") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the College's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 28, 2021.

Internal control over financial reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the College's internal control over financial reporting ("internal control") as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the College's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the College's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in the College's internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.



Compliance and other matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the College's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

Intended purpose

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the College's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the College's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania September 28, 2021



GRANT THORNTON LLP

2001 Market St., Suite 700 Philadelphia, PA 19103-7065

D +1 215 561 4200
F +1 215 561 1066

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Trustees Community College of Philadelphia (A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Report on compliance for each major federal program

We have audited the compliance of Community College of Philadelphia (the "College") with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget's *OMB Compliance Supplement* that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. The College's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its federal awards applicable to the College's federal programs.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the College's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. *Code of Federal Regulations* Part 200, *Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards* (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the College's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the College's compliance.

Opinion on each major federal program

In our opinion, the College complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.



Report on internal control over compliance

Management of the College is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the College's internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the College's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in the College's internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this Report on Internal Control Over Compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania Date



SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

June 30, 2021

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:			Unmo	dified		
Internal control over financial repor	ting:					
Material weakness(es) identified	1?		yes	X	no	
 Significant deficiency(ies) identi considered to be material weak 			yes	<u> </u>	none reported	
Noncompliance material to finar	ncial statements noted?		yes	X	no	
Federal Awards						
Internal control over major program	IS:					
Material weakness(es) identifie	d?		yes	<u> </u>	no	
 Significant deficiency(ies) ident considered to be material weak 			yes	_X_	none reported	
Type of auditor's report issued on c	compliance for major program	ms:	Unmo	dified		
Any audit findings disclosed that ar in accordance with 2 CFR 200.51			yes	<u> </u>	no	
Identification of major programs:						
Assistance Listing Numbers	<u>Name</u>	of Feder	al Progr	am or Cl	<u>uster</u>	
Student Financial Assistance Cluster:84.007Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants (FSEOG84.033Federal Work-Study Program (FWS)84.063Federal Pell Grant Program (PELL)84.268Federal Direct Student Loans (Direct Loan)						
84.425	Education Stabilization Fu	Ind				
Dollar threshold used to distinguish	between type A and type B	program	s:	\$750,0	00	
Auditee qualified as low-risk audite	e?	<u> X</u>	yes		no	
Section II - Financial Statement F	indings					

None.

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None.



SUMMARY OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS

June 30, 2021

No matters to report.



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Trustees Community College of Philadelphia (A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia) and Pennsylvania Department of Human Services

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by management and the Board of Trustees of Community College of Philadelphia (the "College") and the Pennsylvania Department of Human Services ("DHS"), related to the College's compliance with the requirements listed in Audit Clause A of the Pennsylvania KEYS agreement between the College and DHS (the "specified requirements") during the period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 (the "Subject Matter"). The College's management is responsible for its compliance with those requirements. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the parties specified in this report. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures enumerated below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose.

The procedures we performed and our findings are as follows.

 Verified by comparison the amounts and classifications that the Supplemental Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures which summarizes amounts reported to DHS for the year ended June 30, 2021, have been accurately compiled and reflect the audited books and records of the College.

No exceptions noted.

2. Verified by comparison to the example schedules included in the specified requirements that these schedules are presented, at a minimum, at the level of detail that directly mirrors the budget page (Rider 3) of the subject matter. The Supplemental Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures should mirror the line items on the budget pages of the contract and include a budget and an actual expenditure column pertaining to the period.

No exceptions noted.

3. Inquired of management regarding adjustments to reported revenues or expenditures, which were not reflected on the reports submitted to DHS for the period in question.

No such adjustments noted.

GRANT THORNTON LLP

Two Commerce Square 2001 Market Street, Suite 700 Philadelphia, PA 19103

D +1 215 561 4200
F +1 215 561 1066



4. Disclose any adjustments and/or findings and identify which have not been reflected in the corresponding schedules.

No such adjustments or findings noted.

- 5. The supplemental schedule to be included in the College's single audit reporting package for the year ended June 30, 2021, is a reconciliation of the expenditures listed on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ("SEFA") to the Federal award income received from DHS ("reconciliation schedule") as required by DHS and noted in the revenue audit confirmation received from the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The procedures performed on the reconciliation schedule were as follows:
 - a. Agreed the expenditure amounts listed on the reconciliation schedule under the "Federal Expenditures per the SEFA" column to the audited SEFA.
 - b. Agreed the receipt amounts listed on the reconciliation schedule under the "Federal Awards Received per the audit confirmation reply from Pennsylvania" column to the sub-recipient Federal amounts that are reflected in the audit confirmation reply from the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.
 - c. Recalculated the amounts listed under the "Difference" column.
 - d. Agreed the amounts listed under the "Difference" column to the audited books and records of the College.
 - e. Agreed the "Detailed Explanation of the Differences" to the audited books and records of the College.
 - f. Based on the procedures detailed above, disclosed any adjustments and/or findings which have not been reflected on the corresponding schedules.

No exceptions noted.

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the standards applicable to attestation engagements contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on compliance with the specified requirements. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you.



The purpose of this agreed-upon procedures report is solely to report our findings based on the specific procedures performed on the Subject Matter for the purpose of assisting management and the Board of Trustees of the College and DHS in evaluating compliance with the specified requirements. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania <mark>DATE</mark>



SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS PASSED THROUGH THE PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES

Year ended June 30, 2021

Federal Grantor Program	Assistance Listing Number	Expe	ederal Inditures he SEFA	per the Reply	al Awards Received e Audit Confirmation / from Pennsylvania artment of Human Services	Diffe	rence	Detailed Explanation of the Differences
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) Program	93.558	\$	141,107	\$	141,107	\$	-	N/A
Supplemental Nutrition and Assistance Program (SNAP)	10.561	\$	220,192	\$	220,192	\$	-	N/A

<u>DRA</u>FT

AGENCY: Community College of Philadelphia AGENCY ADDRES: 1700 Spring Garden Street, Philadelphia, PA I Contract Number 4100081210 SAP VENDOR #:	07/01/2020-06/30/2021	Supplemental Schedule of R KEYS		penditures	07/01/2020-06/30/2021					
BUDGETED AMOUNTCUMULATIVE YTD ACTUAL EXPENSESBALANCE OF BUDGETED AMOUNTADMINISTRATION COSTS (Not to exceed 10% of total grant award)A. PERSONNEL Staff Fringe BenefitsStaff Fringe BenefitsTotal Salaries/Fringe BenefitsB. EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES1.200191.811.5012.000TOTAL ADMINISTRATION COSTS16,7012,019PROGRAM COSTS (Direct Training) A. PERSONNEL-A. PERSONNELStaff Salaries447,823369,18178,641Staff Salaries37,890S. EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES-1014 ADMINISTRATION COSTS1125,456110,75414,701Total Personnel37,890S. EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES-1014 PERSONNEL-1015 SUPPLIES-1016 SUPPLIES-1017 Staff Salaries447,8231018 Staff Fringe Benefits1125,456110,75414,701Total Personnel37,8901018 SUPPLIES37,8901018 SUPPLIES-1014 PEROGRAM EXPENSES128,2141022,141128,2141032,214128,214104L PROGRAM COSTS-104L PROGRAM COSTS-104L PROGRAM COSTS-104L CONTRACT AMOUNT796,491487,810308,949	AGENCY ADDRESS: Contract Number	1700 Spring Garden Street, Philadelphia, PA 1 4100081210 '000139658		215-751-8133						
ADMINISTRATION COSTS (Not to exceed 10% of total grant award) A. PERSONNEL Staff Salaries Staff Fringe Benefits C. OPERATING EXPENSES B. EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES B. EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES C. OPERATING EXPENSES C. OPERATING	EXPENDITURES									
ADMINISTRATION COSTS (Not to exceed 10% of total grant award) A A. PERSONNEL - - Staff Salaries - - - Staff Salaries - - - Staff Salaries - - - Staff Fringe Benefits - - - Color Staff Salaries/Fringe Benefits - - - B. EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES 1,200 19 1,181 C. OPERATING EXPENSES 15,501 2,000 13,501 TOTAL ADMINISTRATION COSTS 16,701 2,019 14,682 PROGRAM COSTS (Direct Training) - - - A. PERSONNEL - - - Staff Salaries 447,823 369,181 78,641 Staff Salaries 125,456 110,754 14,701 Total Personnel 573,279 479,935 93,342 B. EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES 37,890 5,856 32,304 C. OPERATING EXPENSES 40,407 40,407 -				YTD ACTUAL	BUDGETED					
A. PERSONNEL - - - Staff Salaries - - - - Staff Fringe Benefits - - - - - Total Salaries/Fringe Benefits - <t< th=""><th></th><th>TO (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1)</th><th>n.</th><th></th><th></th></t<>		TO (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1)	n.							
Staff Salaries - - - Staff Fringe Benefits - - - - Total Salaries/Fringe Benefits - - - - B. EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES 1,200 19 1,181 C. OPERATING EXPENSES 15,501 2,000 13,501 TOTAL ADMINISTRATION COSTS 16,701 2,019 14,682 PROGRAM COSTS (Direct Training) - - - A. PERSONNEL - - - Staff Fringe Benefits 125,456 110,754 14,701 Total Personnel - - - - B. EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES 37,890 5,856 32,304 C. OPERATING EXPENSES 40,407 40,407 40,407 D. OTHER PROGRAM EXPENSES 128,214 128,214 128,214 TOTAL SUBCONTRACTED EXPENSES - - - TOTAL PROGRAM COSTS 779,790 485,791 294,267 TOTAL PROGRAM COSTS 779,790 485,791 294,267		IS (NOT TO EXCEED 10% OF TOTAL grant award)							
Total Salaries/Fringe Benefits - - - B. EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES 1,200 19 1,181 C. OPERATING EXPENSES 15,501 2,000 13,501 TOTAL ADMINISTRATION COSTS 16,701 2,019 14,682 PROGRAM COSTS (Direct Training) - - - A. PERSONNEL - - - Staff Salaries 447,823 369,181 78,641 Staff Salaries 125,456 110,754 14,701 Total Personnel - - - B. EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES 37,890 5,856 32,304 C. OPERATING EXPENSES 40,407 - - B. EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES 37,890 5,856 32,304 C. OPERATING EXPENSES - - - D. OTHER PROGRAM EXPENSES 128,214 128,214 128,214 TOTAL SUBCONTRACTED EXPENSES - - - TOTAL PROGRAM COSTS 779,790 485,791 294,267 TOTAL PROGRAM COSTS			-	-	-					
B. EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES 1,200 19 1,181 C. OPERATING EXPENSES 15,501 2,000 13,501 TOTAL ADMINISTRATION COSTS 16,701 2,019 14,682 PROGRAM COSTS (Direct Training)	Staff Fringe Benefits		-	-	-					
C. OPERATING EXPENSES 115,501 2,000 13,501 TOTAL ADMINISTRATION COSTS 16,701 2,019 14,682 PROGRAM COSTS (Direct Training)	Total Salaries/Fringe Benefits		-	-	-					
C. OPERATING EXPENSES 115,501 2,000 13,501 TOTAL ADMINISTRATION COSTS 16,701 2,019 14,682 PROGRAM COSTS (Direct Training)		PLIES	1 200	10	1 1 2 1					
PROGRAM COSTS (Direct Training)										
A. PERSONNEL	TOTAL ADMINISTRATION CO	STS	16,701	2,019	14,682					
A. PERSONNEL	PROGRAM COSTS (Dir	ect Training)								
Staff Fringe Benefits 125,456 110,754 14,701 Total Personnel 573,279 479,935 93,342 B. EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES 37,890 5,856 32,304 C. OPERATING EXPENSES 40,407 40,407 D. OTHER PROGRAM EXPENSES 128,214 128,214 TOTAL SUBCONTRACTED EXPENSES - - TOTAL PROGRAM COSTS 779,790 485,791 294,267 TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT 796,491 487,810 308,949										
Total Personnel 573,279 479,935 93,342 B. EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES 37,890 5,856 32,304 C. OPERATING EXPENSES 40,407 40,407 D. OTHER PROGRAM EXPENSES 128,214 128,214 TOTAL SUBCONTRACTED EXPENSES - - TOTAL PROGRAM COSTS 779,790 485,791 294,267 TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT 796,491 487,810 308,949			1		- / -					
B. EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES 37,890 5,856 32,304 C. OPERATING EXPENSES 40,407 40,407 D. OTHER PROGRAM EXPENSES 128,214 128,214 TOTAL SUBCONTRACTED EXPENSES - - TOTAL PROGRAM COSTS 779,790 485,791 294,267 TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT 796,491 487,810 308,949	_									
C. OPERATING EXPENSES 40,407 40,407 D. OTHER PROGRAM EXPENSES 128,214 128,214 TOTAL SUBCONTRACTED EXPENSES - - TOTAL PROGRAM COSTS 779,790 485,791 294,267 TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT 796,491 487,810 308,949	Total Personnel		573,279	479,935	93,342					
C. OPERATING EXPENSES 40,407 40,407 D. OTHER PROGRAM EXPENSES 128,214 128,214 TOTAL SUBCONTRACTED EXPENSES - - TOTAL PROGRAM COSTS 779,790 485,791 294,267 TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT 796,491 487,810 308,949	B. EQUIPMENT AND SUP	PLIES	37 890	5 856	32 304					
D. OTHER PROGRAM EXPENSES 128,214 128,214 TOTAL SUBCONTRACTED EXPENSES - - - TOTAL PROGRAM COSTS 779,790 485,791 294,267 TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT 796,491 487,810 308,949				5,000	,					
TOTAL PROGRAM COSTS 779,790 485,791 294,267 TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT 796,491 487,810 308,949	D. OTHER PROGRAM EXP	PENSES								
TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT 796,491 487,810 308,949	TOTAL SUBCONTRACTED	EXPENSES	-	-	-					
	TOTAL PROGRAM COSTS		779,790	485,791	294,267					
			796 491	487 810	308 949					
DETAILED PAGE - ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES			7 50,451	407,010	500,949					

Category	BUDGETED AMOUNT	CUMULATIVE YTD ACTUAL EXPENSES	BALANCE OF BUDGETED AMOUNT
PERSONNEL (Please include the % of time spent on grant)			
	_	-	-
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE SALARIES	-	-	
FRINGE BENEFITS			
FICA AND MEDICARE	-	-	-
HEALTH INSURANCE	-	-	-
LIFE & DISABLILITY INSURANCE	-	-	-
UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION	-	-	-
WORKERS COMP	-	-	-
PENSION	-	-	-
	-	-	-
TOTAL FRINGE BENEFITS CHARGED TO ADMINISTRATIVE SALARIES	-	-	-
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE SALARIES & FRINGE BENEFITS	-	-	-
EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES			
CONSUMABLE SUPPLIES	-	-	-
EQUIPMENT RENTAL	1,200	19	1,181
EQUIPMENT PURCHASES	-	-	-
TOTAL EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES	1,200	19	1,181
OPERATING EXPENSES			
Advertising Audit	-	-	-
Consultant Services	2,000 9,768	2,000	- 9,768
Dues and Subscriptions	3,733	-	3,733
Insurance	-		
Postage		-	
Printing	_	-	-
Telephone			-
Maintenance			
Rent	-	-	-
Utilities	-	-	-
Travel	-	-	-
	-	-	-
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES	15,501	2,000	13,501
TOTAL ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES DETAILED PAGE - PROGRAM ACTIVITIES / SUBCONTRACTORS	16,701	2,019	14,682

	BUDGETED AMOUNT	CUMULATIVE YTD ACTUAL	BALANCE OF BUDGETED
Category		EXPENSES	AMOUNT
PERSONNEL (Please include % of time spent on grant) Project Director 100% H Pizarro	61,076	61,010	66
Job Developer 100% G Jones-Woods	45,904	45,855	49
Student Facilitator 100% T Mcknight	44,748	43,704	1,044
Student Facilitator 100% G. Howe	44,748	44,242	506
Student Facilitator 100% M Garbutt	44,748	11,246	33,502
Student Facilitator 100% K Jones	44,748	43,435	1,313
Student Facilitator 100% B Pierce	44,748	44,242	506
Student Facilitator 100% -S. Lawson	43,500	36,881	6,619
Administrative Associate 100% G Cardwell	38,603	38,567	36
Academic Coordinator/Student Facilitator	15,000	-	15,000
Academic Coordinator/Student Facilitator	15,000	-	15,000
Student Worker(s) PT	5,000	-	5,000
TOTAL PROGRAM SALARIES	- 447,823	- 369,182	- 78,641
FRINGE BENEFITS FICA & Medicare	17,151	14,140	3,011
Health Insurance	63,038	54,160	8,878
Life & Disability Insurance	63,038	54,160	8,878
Unemployment Compensation	- 1,771	- 1,561	- 210
Worker's Comp.	2,214	1,561	452
Pension	41,282	39,132	2,150
Felision	41,202	59,152	2,130
TOTAL FRINGE BENEFITS CHARGED TO PROGRAM SALARIES	125,456	110,755	14,701
TOTAL PROGRAM SALARIES & FRINGE BENEFITS	573,279	479,937	93,342
	,	,	,
EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES			
Consumable Supplies	31,179	5,586	25,593
Equipment Rental	-	-	-
Equipment Purchases	1,200	-	1,200
Educational Software (Rosetta, Math Made Easy)	5,511	-	5,511
TOTAL EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES	37,890	5,586	32,304
OPERATING EXPENSES			
Dues and Subscriptions	-	-	-
Insurance	-	-	-
Postage	2,500	-	2,500
Printing	7,500	-	7,500
Telephone Maintenance	- 22.406	-	-
	22,406	-	22,406
Rent	-	-	-
Utilities	-	-	-
Travel	8,001	-	8,001
	-	-	-
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES	40,407	-	40,407
Other Program Expenses			
Allowable(stds) Incentives	57,260	-	57,260
Participant reimbursement	2,149	-	2,149
Career Fairs/Conferences	-	-	-
Educational Enrichment/Staff Prof. Development	48,003	-	48,003
Hospitality	3,575	-	3,575
Graduation	2,775	-	2,775
Pre-enrollment services/College Prep	10,873	-	10,873
VWE/PWE-Tutors	3,579	-	3,579
TOTAL OTHER PROGRAM EXPENSES	128,214	-	128,214
			· · · · · · · · ·
<u>Subcontractors</u>	_	-	-
TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR EXPENSES	-	-	-
GRAND TOTAL PROGRAM EXPENSES	779,790	485,523	294,267
TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT	796,491	487,542	308,949
	,	,	,
Revenue		487,542	
Excess of Revenue over Expenses			
		-	

ATTACHMENT D 2020-2022 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN STATUS

COMMUNITY COLLEGE OF PHILADELPHIA

Date:	March 22, 2022
To:	Audit Committee Members
From:	Robert Lucas, Internal Auditor
Subject:	Internal Audit – Plan Status and Other Information
Copies:	Donald Generals, Jacob Eapen, Victoria Zellers

Since the last Audit Committee meeting, the following audit work has been performed:

Audit reports finalized and issued to management:

- \circ Send Word Now
- Draft reports in discussion with management:
 - o 50th Anniversary Scholars Program
 - CAN-SPAM Act
 - Social Media Accounts
- Audits in progress:
 - PC Lending Program
 - Part-Time Faculty Medical Benefits
 - Veterans' Resource Center
- Updated the Internal Audit Follow Up Matrix based on responses and target dates from senior management.
- Completed an investigation related to the Department of Education audit of Student Financial Aid as requested by the Audit Committee and General Counsel.
- Facilitated an update of the division / department disaster recovery plans. A full set of updates of prior plans are planned by June 30.
- Participated in development of Middle States self-study.
- Internal Audit Committee meetings are scheduled quarterly and continue to occur via Zoom chaired by the Internal Auditor.

* * * * * * *

Community College of Philadelphia Internal Audit Plan - July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2022

	Risk	Risk Explanation /			Planned
Functional Area	Rating	Reason for Audit	Fiscal Year	Stage	Quarter
Financial Audits					
		Verify controls for			
Check Requests - Vendors	L	payments to vendors	2021	7	2
		Verify controls for			
		reimbursements to	0004	-	
Check Requests - Employees	L	employees Determine controls over	2021	7	2
102/b) Transportions *		payments to retirement	2022		2
403(b) Transactions *		savings vendors	2022		2
Operational Audits					
		Determine controls over			
		employee requests related			
403(b) Administration *	L	to retirement savings	2022		2
		Determine controls and			
Part-Time Faculty Medical		accuracy of medical	0004		
Benefits	L	coverage paid by staff	2021	4	4
		Compliance with Veterans'			
Veterans' Resource Center	м	Education Benefits Laws	2022	3	1
Veteralis Resource Center	IVI	Education Benefits Laws	2022	3	1
Compliance					
		Determine compliance with			
Catto Scholarship	М	requirements	2022		3
		Compliance with related			
Right to Know Requests	L	laws	2022		3
Right to Know Requests			2022		5
		Determine compliance with			
State Recruiting Regulations	М	regulations / restrictions	2022		1
		Determine compliance with			
		policies, procedures and			
Family Medical Leave Act	L	regulations	2022		4
		Determine the controls,			
		procedures and risk			
		management in place to			
		ensure vendors are			
		meeting their stated levels			
		of goods, services, timing			
Vendor Management	L	and pricing.	2022		4
		Compliance with			
		procedures and controls	0001	_	
Forgivable Loans		for such loans	2021	7	1

Community College of Philadelphia Internal Audit Plan - July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2022

	Risk	Risk Explanation /			Planned
Functional Area	Rating	Reason for Audit	Fiscal Year	Stage	Quarter
IT Audits					
		Determine adequacy of controls for systems			
Network Security	L	access via review of external audit work	2021	7	1
		Determine adequacy of administration controls (roles and responsibilites;			
Send Word Now	М	database; testing)	2021	7	3
CAN-SPAM Act (Email		Determine adequacy of controls for access and posting to College social media accounts and for			
Solicitations)	L	email solicitations	2021	5	3
Social Media Accounts		Determine adequacy of controls for access and posting to College social media accounts and for email solicitations	2021	5	3
IT PC Lending Programs	М	Determine adequacy of procedures and controls related to lending laptops and other IT equipment to employees and students	2021	4	4
Alternate Audits					
Other Accounts Receivable	L	Determine adequacy of procedures and controls over A/R other than tuition			
Computer Leona		Determine adequacy of procedures and controls related to employees loans			
Computer Loans		for computer purchases Determine controls over			
Lion Card	L	prepaid card program			
		Determine adequacy of procedures and controls			
Paid Time Off Recordkeeping	L				

Community College of Philadelphia Internal Audit Plan - July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2022

Functional Area	Risk Rating	Risk Explanation / Reason for Audit	Fiscal Year	Stage	Planned Quarter
Administrative					
Follow Up on Prior Issues			Ongoing		Ongoing
Committee Meetings (Grants,					
Data Breach, EMT, external					
audits/reviews)			Ongoing		Ongoing

Stage:

Risk Assessment / Planning	1
Announcement / Contact	2
Opening Meeting Held	3
Fieldwork	4
Draft Report Issued	5
Closing Meeting Held	6
Final Report Issued	7

Risk Ratings are Low (L), Medium (M), or High (H) based on a compilation of individually-rated risk factors including: financial statement impact; transaction volume; public relations/reputation; student satisfaction; legal/regulatory compliance; corporative initiatives; significant changes; known problems/issues; staff/faculty satisfaction; and executive override.

Report	Area/		Target	
Date	Responsible Party	Recommendation	Date	Management Response / Follow up
59 5/25/2016		ITS and Facilities management should take appropriate steps and plans to reduce the risks associated with connectivity rooms left wide open.	6/30/17 6/30/18 9/15/18 (Status Update) 5/31/22	ITS management noted that a plan to move the connectivity hardware to a separate room. ITS management states that the project has again been included and approved in the capital budget for the 2016-2017 fiscal year although they do not know when construction will begin. The project has been re-scheduled for the Spring/Summer of 2018. The current IT Closet has been locked down at the WERC campus and is no longer used by custodians or others. An alternative space for this ITS connectivity room has been included in a larger project for this regional center. Consequently, the project has been re-scheduled for the fall semester of 2018. The college will be building the Career And Advanced Technology Center @ the WRC campus . An IT closet will be in the new building and all equipment will be moved from the current closet to the new closet. The projected completion for the new building will be August 2021.
63 5/25/2016		Management should consider installing additional gaseous systems in rooms which have significant risk of business and classroom interruption based on the type of equipment in the connectivity rooms.	6/30/17 (Update of Progress) 4/30/18 9/15/18 (Status Update) 5/31/19 6/30/21 3/31/22	 Management has decided to upgrade the fire suppression systems from sprinklers to gaseous systems in three rooms deemed critical due to the nature and value of electronic equipment in those rooms. Specifically, upgrades in rooms B2-39, MG-6A and W1-E1 have been included in the budget for the 2016-2017 fiscal year and, as such, should be completed by June 30, 2017. Update as of 12/21/2016: Phase One: The 3 CRITICAL Closets (MG-6A, B2-39, W1-E1) are pending the release of the RFP for installation of the FM200 fire suppression systems. Phase 2: Time and funding permitting the regional center IDFs will be addressed later for gaseous fire suppression. The scope of work for this project was completed. RFP is expected to be posted by 10/4/17 with work to be completed by 4/30/18. RFPs have been issued. Work is expected to be performed over the summer 2018 and completed by the start of the fall semester. Fire Suppression will be installed for MG-6A and W1-E1 and work will be done on ceiling installations to support the fire suppression equipment. B2-39 no longer needs this upgrade as critical equipment housed in that space has been moved to a protected room. Several RFPs have been issued but costs were prohibitive vs the risk. Work was expected to be performed over the summer 2018 and completed by the start of the fall semester. Fire Suppression for MG-6A and W1-E1 was completed on ceilings and rooms to support the fire suppression preparations for MG-6A and W1-E1 was completed by the start of the fall semester. Fire Suppression gained and center consultant through Dell and it was determined that an alternative Rack Mount enclosures with Fire Supression and containment would possibly be a more cost effective solution. Quotes were obtained and discussions with consultants, Facilities/IT staff determined that a data center study should be considered to further evaluate all IDF/MDF's at each campus. Rack Mount enclosures with Fire Suppression have been procured. They wi

	Report	Area/		Target	
	Date	Responsible Party	Recommendation	Date	Management Response / Follow up
75	5/24/2018	Disaster Recovery and Response Plan	Substantive testing of the DRRP should be documented. Issues and resolutions should be tracked and documented until completed. Table-top exercises should also be performed periodically using a	6/30/18 5/31/21	Testing procedures and results will be documented and maintained moving forward. Tabletop exercises will be added to the monthly DR meetings held in ITS. These procedures will also be documented in the DRRP within the next 90 days (no later than June 30, 2018).
		Vijay Sonty	variety of scenarios and timing.	8/31/21 11/1/21	 Will address this in the new Technology Plan which has been been drafted. Waiting to review will all College-wide committees to seek approval. Will be completed by end-of-May 2021. The Board of Trustees have approved the 2021-2025 Technology Plan. The DRRP plan has been documented and updated. A list of disaster recovery scenarios have been documented which focus on the loss of hardware in buildings or on campuses. Systems potentially affected or lost are listed for each scenario with possible recovery or bypass options. Disaster recovery topics/planning are included in bi-weekly ITS team meetings and documented in meetings minutes.
77	5/24/2018	Disaster Recovery and Response Plan Vijay Sonty	Cyber Breach Committee should meet quarterly to determine the status of data which may not be sufficiently secured. The CIO should be empowered to direct actions to be taken to secure this data. Senior management should be informed of risk areas not secured in a timely manner.	9/30/18 5/31/21 8/31/21 11/1/21	Data Breach Committee will begin meeting again prior to the end of the spring 2018 term. (Meeting was held on May 2.) The committee charge will be reviewed and refined during the first meeting. A meeting schedule will be presented to setup quarterly meetings. A survey for College units, similar to the 2016 survey, will be performed to determine the state of our PII data and the locations of such data. Will address this in the new Technology Plan which has been been drafted. Waiting to review will all College-wide committees to seek approval. Will be completed by end-of-May 2021. The Cyber Breach Committee had its first meeting on October 27, 2021 under the leadership of the new CIO. The agenda included: review of CCP data security tools & applications.
80	5/24/2018	ITS Physical Security John Wiggins Vijay Sonty	Several critical server rooms had sprinklers systems for fire suppression which would cause water damage to the equipment they are designed to prevent damage from fire. This concern was included in the ITS physical security audit report and management has established actions plans to replace the sprinkler systems in these rooms with gaseous fire suppression systems.	9/15/18 5/31/19 6/30/21 3/31/22	See Management Response / Follow Up for item # 63 above. A Risk vs. Reward analysis was conducted to review the need for investing and implementing a Fire Suppressant System. The recommendation was to explore moving key mission control systems (ERP and Student Information System) to the cloud. Leverage AWS for compute power, database storage, content delivery and other key functionality. Given the high cost of the fire suppressant system it is optimal to not invest in the FS system. Since we are implementing Dell VxRail Hyper Converged Infrastructure, this allows our infrastructure to be available with zero data loss and near instantaneous recovery and automated failover at our backup datacenter site. The strategy to move critical resources to the cloud will minimize the dependency on the onsite data center plus allow for less replacement of equipment in event of a disaster situation like power failure, fire, flooding, and physical security.

Recommendation value of the Send Word Now program to the recommends the following: Verify that all ncy related groups received the test portance of these groups receiving real	Date 11/30/19	Management Response / Follow up Receipt of the test message will be confirmed with each member of these groups. The target date for confirming all have received a test message is November 30, 2019.
recommends the following: Verify that all ncy related groups received the test	11/30/19	confirming all have received a test message is November 30, 2019.
		SWN administrators are able to determine the number of successful deliveries of test messages to the EMT and EPG members. Follow up as needed is the responsibility of the SWN administrators.
that students are aware of the EOP and other on, Internal Audit recommends that staff Department participate in all student use that appropriate sofety information is	1/21/2020 4/30/21	It is envisioned by the orientation planners that producing videos may be a way to effectively maximize its communication with new students. Public Safety is available to speak at the student orientation as desired by Student Affairs. Public Safety will produce several safety-related videos for new students as a means to help promote a safety culture as well as give valuable information to
udents including references to the College's	8/31/21	students on emergency preparedness. The target date to make videos available for the public January 21, 2020.
		The script for the video has been approved and production should begin in February / March 2021.
		Video has been posted to CCP website.
nds that the EOP be amended to include o the DRRP. During an actual event, ITS informed of all updates to help them prepare	01/20/20	The DRRP mentions and points to the EOP in its preamble statement. Further, the crafters of the DRRP and EOP have worked together to ensure cohesion in processes and protocols in the event of an emergency. A review of both documents will be added to the EOP agenda as a standing item
manner to scenarios which will impact IT		going forward with respect to incursions which both plans may be called into service. This bifurcated model will ensure there is no overlap, duplication or obstructive response from the Emergency response administrators. The Target date for a comprehensive review of these documents is January 20, 2020.
		Neither document has been updated to reference the other.
ends recovery activities should be prioritized	5/15/2020	The Chief of Staff will recommend that the Cabinet direct all divisions to review existing, or
		develop new, disaster response and recovery plans that comply with the decentralization of recovery
2 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	4/30/21	activities and detailed in the EOP. The target date for verifying that all divisions have such plans in
ge services, etc.) should be maintained within	8/31/21	place is May 15, 2020. The Cabinet will direct management to review and update these division plans on an annual basis.
		The Chief of Staff accepted responsibility for working with the Cabinet to ensure recovery plans
		were in place where needed through the College. Disaster Recevery Plans were developed in late
		2019/early 2020 by all functional areas deemed to be critical by the division VP. Annual updates will be performed each year. The 2020 consolidated plan will be distributed by April 30, 2020.
	Department participate in all student ure that appropriate safety information is udents including references to the College's ands that the EOP be amended to include o the DRRP. During an actual event, ITS informed of all updates to help them prepare manner to scenarios which will impact IT ends recovery activities should be prioritized nanagement with outlines of specific actions on, a list of current vendors, and vendors needed (e.g. hazardous materials clean up,	Department participate in all student ure that appropriate safety information is udents including references to the College's 4/30/21 ends that the EOP be amended to include o the DRRP. During an actual event, ITS informed of all updates to help them prepare manner to scenarios which will impact IT 01/20/20 ends recovery activities should be prioritized nanagement with outlines of specific actions on, a list of current vendors, and vendors needed (e.g. hazardous materials clean up, ge services, etc.) should be maintained within 5/15/2020

	Report	Area/		Target	
	Date	Responsible Party	Recommendation	Date	Management Response / Follow up
87	6/19/2018	Emergency Operations Plan Randolph Merced	Internal Audit understands that the Director of Public Safety is initiating a process for the EOP to be reviewed, and updated as necessary, in the near future. Please confirm this understanding and provide the date of expected completion. Future reviews should be scheduled at least annually.	9/30/2019 8/31/21	The EOP is reviewed by the members of the Emergency Management Team throughout the year and, on an annual basis, the EMT chair reviews the agenda, recommendations, notes and commentary throughout the year and does a comprehensive review of the plan. The updated plan and its revisions are place in the Public Safety Website for public consumption. The target date for completion of the current revision of the EOP is September 30, 2019. The Director of Public safety has assigned a working group form in the summer months to review and update the EOP. The data from the year, recommendations and revisions will be documented at that time. If there are no changes then the working group will advance the current report with an updated date reviewed signature on the Document's signature page.
92A	6/19/2018	Emergency Operations Plan Randolph Merced	Internal Audit recommends that media contacts be designated and documented in the EOP and they should be the same persons designated in the DRRP.	09/30/19	The Media Contacts will be included in the EOP which is currently undergoing the 2019 review and update process. The target revisions date for the 2019 update of the EOP is September 30, 2019 which will include the designated media contacts.
92B	6/19/2018	Emergency Operations Plan Shannon Rooney	Internal Audit recommends that media contacts be designated and documented in the EOP and they should be the same persons designated in the DRRP.	12/31/2019 5/28/21 8/31/21	The Critical Communications Plan is being revised and will be distributed to appropriate College managers. Target date for revision is December 31, 2019. The Critical Communications Plan will include designated media contacts and their contact information. The plan is expected to be completed by May 28, 2021.
93A	9/7/2018	Non-ITS Administered Programs Vijay Sonty	Internal Audit recommends that the Cyber Breach Group establish goals and timetables to address education of department owners related to PII, as well as the security of PII within the College's physical areas and systems.	TBD 5/31/21 8/31/21	A search for a new AVP of Information & Technology is in progress. As facilitator of the Cyber Breach Group, that person will be responsible for following up on any information still needed from the users departments of the SaaS programs based on the most recent survey. The new AVP will schedule another meeting of the Cyber Breach Group within 90 of his/her start date to review progress and next steps for this action. Cyber Breach Committee will be established and timetble and goals will be addressed in the next
93B	9/7/2018	Non-ITS Administered Programs Victoria Zellers	Internal Audit recommends that the Cyber Breach Group establish goals and timetables to address education of department owners related to PII, as well as the security of PII within the College's physical areas and systems.	10/31/2019 5/31/21 8/31/21	90 davs. The Office of the General Counsel is also expected to recommend procedures related to paper documents with PII held by various departments throughout the College. The target date for these recommendations to be made to Division management is October 31, 2019. Cyber Breach Committee will be established and timetble and goals will be addressed in the next 90 days.
94	9/7/2018	Non-ITS Administered Programs Vijay Sonty	Internal Audit recommends that the CIO and/or Purchasing Department management determine what contracts reference data storage in the cloud by vendors which may be evergreen or automatic renewal terms which may prevent the new review control from occurring. Such contracts should be reviewed against the new questionnaire and management should consider executing amendments to these contracts which address any cloud-related risks or internal control weaknesses of the vendor.	TBD 5/31/21 8/31/21	The new AVP of Information & Technology, when hired, will be tasked with developing a plan to identify existing contracts which could bypass new controls related to cloud storage due to auto- renewal or extension options. This person with work with management to take appropriate actions to ensure cloud controls for new contracts are implemented by the next renewal or extension. The target date for identifying contracts which have not completed a cloud questionnaire is 120 days after the start date of the new AVP. CIO will review contracts with purchasing in the next 90 days. Cloud questionnaire is required for new and renewed contracts. ITS and Legal ensure answers address the risks to the College.

	Report	Area/		Target	
	Date	Responsible Party	Recommendation	Date	Management Response / Follow up
95	9/7/2018	Non-ITS Administered Programs Vijay Sonty	Internal Audit recommends that each program owner be required to designate a backup administrator. The CIO should follow up on the current PII survey and obtain such designated persons for each program.	TBD 5/31/21 8/31/21	The new AVP, when hired, will review the latest SaaS survey at the next Cyber Breach Group meeting and develop recommendations to Division management or the Cabinet to help ensure all user department have designated such backup administrators. The target date for developing the recommendations is 90 days after the start date of the new AVP. This recommendation will be followed up after the Cyber Breach Group has been established. ITS has accepted the responsibility to be the backup administrator for all SaaS programs. ITS has made efforts to obtain such credentials for each program.
96	9/7/2018	Non-ITS Administered Programs Vijay Sonty	Internal Audit recommends that ITS review the programs listed in the PII survey and determine if there are time sensitive programs for which downtime for any reason could interfere with the functionality required by staff to perform their duties and provide services to both staff, faculty and students. Since ITS is well versed in continuity planning for the programs they manage, it would be prudent for ITS to assist departments with time sensitive programs in developing procedures related to such downtime.	TBD 5/31/21 8/31/21	The new AVP, when hired, will solicit management's input for each of the programs to determine if any are considered critical to the mission and work of the College, both academic and as a business, such that downtime will quickly be problematic. For any such programs, ITS will offer to consult with management to help ensure that the department and/or vendor is sufficiently prepared to address interrupted access promptly. The target date to solicit this information from management is 120 days after the start date of the new AVP.
97	9/7/2018	Non-ITS Administered Programs Vijay Sonty	Internal Audit requests that ITS confirm that it has access right to each program currently in use throughout the College.	TBD 5/31/21 8/31/21	The new AVP, when hired, will be tasked with developing recommendations to senior management related to the decentralization of these SaaS programs throughout the College and whether the AVP of Information & Technology should have access to these programs as well. The target date for making these recommendations to management is 90 days after the start date of the new AVP. ITS has obtained Back up administrative accounts for all SAAS programs throughout the College.
120	1/29/2020	Residency Verification Shannon Rooney	Internal Audit recommends that management consider that the procedures related to residency verification for students as currently documented and available in various areas, are not the procedures which are currently in practice during the application and admission processes.	06/30/21	The College will update the Residency policy. The College's admissions office will document the procedures that they currently use to verify residency in an internal facing procedures manual by June 30, 2021.
122A	9/30/2020	Network Security Review Vijay Sonty	Internal Audit recommends that management consider revising the policy to include audits and reviews such as this one which may not fall under the current defined scope of those which are the subject of the policy. This would ensure that the results of audits and reviews are presented to the Board including the findings, recommendations and action plans. The Board should be informed of the status of any such action plans until they are completed.	02/08/21	Management agrees with the recommendation to revise the current policy to ensure that the results of such reviews which include recommendations to create or strengthen internal controls, will be reported to the Audit Committee including progress updates related to recommended actions until they are completed. The Internal Audit Committee agreed on, and proposed suggested language to the Cabinet, to be included in a revision of this policy. The revised policy was approved by the Cabinet and the policy was posted on the College's website on February 8, 2021.
122B	9/30/2020	Network Security Review Vijay Sonty	Internal Audit recommends that management consider revising the policy to include audits and reviews such as this one which may not fall under the current defined scope of those which are the subject of the policy. This would ensure that the results of audits and reviews are presented to the Board including the findings, recommendations and action plans. The Board should be informed of the status of any such action plans until they are completed.	02/08/21	Management agrees with the recommendation to revise the current policy to ensure that the results of such reviews which include recommendations to create or strengthen internal controls, will be reported to the Audit Committee including progress updates related to recommended actions until they are completed.

	Report	Area/		Target	
	Date	Responsible Party	Recommendation	Date	Management Response / Follow up
130	12/30/2020	Forgivable Loans Victoria Zellers	Internal Audit recommends that management establish controls to require school documentation of the successful completion of courses for which loans were provided. Such controls should help ensure the legitimacy of information submitted by participants at the time the loans are requested.	06/30/21	Management will work on adding more controls to verify coursework and payment information including: (1) employee must submit an accurate copy of the invoice and a FERPA waiver to allow the College's representatives to call the institution and verify the enrollment, course registration, and payment amounts; and (2) employee must provide proof of payment. Although the FERPA Waiver will permit verification by the Controller's Department, HR, supervisors, and Divisional Vice Presidents or his/her designee, at this time it is intended that it will be the responsibility of each Vice President to designate someone in their area to verify the request for each semester in order to have a loan request approved. Management will update policy application by June 30, 2021. Policy was updated June 8, 2021. The Forgivable Loan Application and the College wide
					procedures for requesting and approving loan requests have both been updated and are in use.
131	9/23/2020	Forgivable Loans Victoria Zellers	The current policy governing forgivable loans, Policy #206 (dated 2010) should be reviewed for potential revisions after management has considered all of the comments and recommendations in this	06/30/21	The policy will be reviewed and changed to be consistent with the CBAs and College practice. Policy will be updated by June 30, 2021.
122.4	9/23/2020	Forgivable Loans	report. Internal Audit recommends that management enhance the	06/30/21	Policy was updated June 8, 2021. Management will update the controls and verification process and has and will continue to seek
132A	9/23/2020	Victoria Zellers	Internal Audit recommends that management enhance the documented procedures to help ensure that other staff can perform all of the necessary tasks in the absence of the primary staff. The procedures should also address the necessary interactions with Human Resources, the President's Office, the Bursar's office and the Payroll group, as well as those to establish repayment agreements, to help ensure all of the related tasks of those groups are performed when needed.	06/30/21	Management will update the controls and verification process and nas and will continue to seek opportunities to cross train employees. Policy and application will be updated by June 30, 2021. The Forgivable Loan Application and the College wide procedures for requesting and approving loan requests have both been updated and are in use.
132B	9/23/2020	Forgivable Loans	See 132A	07/31/21	Management will update the controls and verification process and has and will continue to seek opportunities to cross train employees. Controllers procedures based on the new application will be updated by July 2021
132C	9/23/2020	Gim Lim Forgivable Loans	See 132A	08/31/21	updated by July 31, 2021. Management will update the controls and verification process and has and will continue to seek
1520	972372020	Gim Lim		00/51/21	opportunities to cross train employees. Supervisors will be trained on new application and procedures over August 31, 2021.
133	9/23/2020	Forgivable Loans Victoria Zellers	Management should consider the financial benefits to both the employees and the College under this type of EAP. Internal Audit understands that this is a negotiated benefit in the CBA of both full- time faculty and classified/confidential employees but the tax benefits may be appreciated by the Federation before or during the next negotiation period.	06/30/21	Management will work on adding more controls to verify coursework and payment information including: (1) employee must submit an accurate copy of the invoice and a FERPA waiver to allow the College's representatives to call the institution and verify the enrollment, course registration, and payment amounts; and (2) employee must provide proof of payment. Although the FERPA Waiver will permit verification by the Controller's Department, HR, supervisors, and Divisional Vice Presidents or his/her designee, at this time it is intended that it will be the responsibility of each Vice President to designate someone in their area to verify the request for each semester in order to have a loan request approved. Management will update policy application by June 30, 2021
135	9/23/2020	Forgivable Loans Lisa Hutcherson	Internal Audit recommends that all documentation and web pages related to the Forgivable Loan program be reviewed and updated as necessary to ensure the information provided by all sources is accurate and consistent.	07/31/21	The Classified CBA states that the Forgivable Loans are continued under "its current forgivable loan policy" which means that the employee has to pay 50% of the tuition. The forgivable loan policy was last revised in 2010 and needs to be updated to reflect changes from the 2012-2016 CBAs. HR web pages will be updated to refer to the Policy by July 31, 2021. The provision on being eligible at 90 days or 1 year (as stated in the CBAs) is the College's choice. The College may have a policy that is more generous than required in the CBAs, but should not change the CBAs because it is then locked into that change.

	Report Date	Area/ Responsible Party	Recommendation	Target Date	Management Response / Follow up
136	9/23/2020	Forgivable Loans Gim Lim	Internal Audit ecommends the documentation requirements for the loan program be strengthened to help the funds are being used as intended and to minimize the risk of fraudulent transactions.	08/31/21	Management will revise the Application to include a FERPA Waiver to allow the College to verify the courses selected, and invoices. Supervisor or staff designated by VP will verify application, courses selected and invoices for each loan. Management disagrees that the employee has to pay and be reimbursed as some employees may not be able to front the costs. Management agrees to require proof of payment and will incorporate this into its processes by August 31, 2021. The Forgivable Loan Application and the College wide procedures for requesting and approving loan requests have both been updated and are in use.
138	9/23/2020	Forgivable Loans Gim Lim	Internal Audit recommends that management review the classes taken relative to the degree or program requirements originally approved. Management should consider strengthening or creating controls.	TBD	Management does retain discretion to not approve a loan to the extent it is different from the original approved program of study and will build in such a procedure to the semester by semester application to determine if further study is needed for the program originally approved.
139	5/26/2021	Send Word Now Vijay Sonty	SWN test messages are sent to EMT and EPG. Internal Audit recommends confirmation of these messages. See 84C above.		The Public Safety team has developed a schedule for sending test messages out to the public. The rationale for these test is twofold 1) to test the system, speed and accuracy and 2) to train administrative personnel who are responsible for sending out messages. The test is conducted approximately 2 weeks after semester start. Going forward there will be auxiliary test to various groups as defined within the SWN groups. Testing for the Emergency Policy Group (Cabinet) and Emergency Management Team (EMT are schedule for this fall 2021. These test and outcomes will be documented under the Public Safety Report exec system for historic purposes. SWN administrators are able to determine the number of successful deliveries of test messages to the EMT and EPG members. Follow up as needed is the responsibility of the SWN administrators.
140	5/26/2021	Send Word Now Vijay Sonty	Internal Audit recommends that management develop procedures to ensure other staff can perform necessary tasks uncluding interactions between Public Safety, ITS, and Communication departments.		SWN is very easy to use and ITS plan on adding (3) additional backup resources who are proficient in the use of SWN messaging. Currently work is being done to codify an appropriate P&P to address ownership of the message at each level of an incident. We will compile relevant documentation which outlines the procedure Responsible positions who actives the mass notification system and at what critical point the responsibility of sending a message out. At which point are supplemental messages sent and who is responsible for that message
141	5/26/2021	Send Word Now Vijay Sonty	Internal Audit recommends that documented protocols be developed, approved by the Cabinet and distributed to the Executive Policy Group and the power users for SWN so that all persons who may be involved in creating, sending or authorizing SWN messages understand their roles and responsibilities.	TBD	Draft procedures have been developed. Distribution to EPG members and other backup users will occur in the near future.
142	5/26/2021	Send Word Now Vijay Sonty Jessica Hurst	Internal Audit recommends that the opt out process include or trigger communications to the person opting out to inform them of the risks of opting out of SWN messages.	TBD	ITS will explore sending an email to opting person to inform them of the risks of opting out.

Action plans are complete and will be moved to the Completed Items Tab

	Report	Area/		Target
	Date	Responsible Party	Recommendation	Date
Actions pl	ans are in	progress		
Action pla	ins are ove	r 1 year past the original	target date; limited progress has been made; and/or no upd	ate was received
Actions pl	ans are ex	pected to be reviewed wit	th the new Internal Audit Committee	

Management Response / Follow up